
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
Weaverville Town Hall, 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC 28787 
Remote Meeting via Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89160650474  - Meeting ID: 891 6065 0474 
Dial +1 253 215 8782 or +1 301 715 8592 – Meeting ID: 891 6065 0474 

AGENDA 

June 22, 2020 
Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 

 

 
On a temporary basis, general public comments must be submitted in advance of the meeting. Comments are limited to no more than 450 words and must 
observe normal rules of decorum. General public comments will be limited to 18 minutes and only comments that are timely received will be read into the record 
during the general public comment period. All comments timely received will be provided to Town Council and included as part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Public comments can be submitted as follows: (1) by emailing to public-comment@weavervillenc.org  at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (2) by putting your 
written comment in a drop box at Town Hall (located at front entrance and back parking lot) at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (3) by mailing your written 
comment (must be received not later than Monday’s mail delivery) to: Town of Weaverville, PO Box 338, Weaverville, NC, 28787, Attn: Public Comments. For 
assistance in providing public comments, please call (828)645-7116. 

  Pg # Presenter 

    
1. Call to Order ......................................................................................................................  Mayor Root 
    
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda .............................................................................. 1 Mayor Root 
    
3. Approval of Minutes ……………………………………………………………………………………..………........  Mayor Root 
 A. May 12, 2020 Town Council Workshop Minutes .......................................................... 

B. May 18, 2020 Town Council Public Hearing Minutes ……………………..………………………… 
C. May 18, 2020 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes ................................................ 
D. May 20, 2020 Town Council Recessed Meeting Minutes …………………………………………. 
E. June 9, 2020 Town Council Workshop Minutes ……………………………………………………….. 

2 
4 
6 

11 
14 

 

    
4. General Public Comments (see below for submission instructions) ….………………….........  Town Clerk 
    
5. Consent Agenda ...............................................................................................................  Town Manager 
 A. Monthly Tax Report ………………………………………………..................................................... 

B. Appointment of Interim Tax Collector .......................................................................... 
C. Budget Amendment: Police Department-Cops for Kids …………………………………………….  
D. Temporary Suspension of Town Fishing License Requirement …………………………………. 

16 
18 
20 
22 

 

    
6. Town Manager’s Report .................................................................................................... 24 Town Manager 
    
7. Discussion & Action Items   
 A. Community Center Project Change Order & Budget Amendment ……………………..…….. 

B. ADA Transition Plan ...................................................................................................... 
C. Approval of Recycling Contract .................................................................................... 
D. County Tax Collections Agreement …............................................................................ 
E. Adoption of FY 2020-2021 Budget Ordinance & Fee Schedule .................................... 
F. Quarterly Report – Public Works & Water ................................................................... 

33 
44 
77 
78 
86 

103 

Public Works Dir. 
Town Attorney 
Town Manager 
Town Manager 
Town Manager 
Public Works Dir. 

    
8. Adjournment .....................................................................................................................  Mayor Root 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89160650474
mailto:public-comment@weavervillenc.org


 

 
Page 1 of 2  May 12, 2020  
  Town Council Workshop Minutes 
  Remote Electronic Meeting 
 

                  

                   MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Regular Workshop 
State of North Carolina Tuesday, May 12, 2020 

Remote Electronic Meeting 
Zoom: http// us02web.zoom.us/j/86912882480 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regularly scheduled regular workshop on Tuesday, May 12, 
2020, at 6:00 p.m. as an electronic video meeting via Zoom Meeting.  
 
Councilmembers remotely present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor Doug Jackson, and Councilmembers Dottie Sherrill, 
Jeffrey McKenna, Andrew Nagle, and Patrick Fitzsimmons.  
 
Staff remotely present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Root called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. 
 
Before Town Manager Coffey got into the budget presentation, she mentioned that Buncombe County had been 
approved for roughly $4.5 million from the Coronavirus Relief Fund.  They have divided this out among the 
municipalities based on ad valorem and fire districts, so the Town of Weaverville is eligible to get a 
reimbursement of $65,728. Expenditures that can be covered under this reimbursement includes medical, payroll, 
PPE, and up to $10,000 to the Weaverville Business Association to support marketing for local businesses. All 
expenses must have occurred after March 1, 2020 and been used on the coronavirus relief.  
 

2. Presentation of Budget Message and Proposed Fiscal Year 2020-2021 General Fund Budget 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented the Budget Message and Proposed Fiscal Year 2020-2021 General Fund 
and Water Fund Budget from the attached PowerPoint slide to Town Council. She mentioned that the COVID-19 
pandemic crisis has impacted the economy tremendously and the Town will be negatively impacted. For this 
reason, the base budget that is proposed reduces capital equipment and capital improvement projects and excludes 
new personnel and freezes salary and wage increases for current employees for 6 months. The proposed General 
Fund budget total is $7,249,242, which is a decrease of $580,066 from the current budget. General Fund revenue 
highlights include no changes to the ad valorem tax rate, decreases in sales tax and North Buncombe Fire District 
tax revenue, and an award of a new recycling grant from the North Carolina Department of Environmental 
Quality for $30,000 to go towards the $87,500 project for providing 2,200 recycling carts.   
 
 
 

2



 

 
Page 2 of 2  May 12, 2020  
  Town Council Workshop Minutes 
  Remote Electronic Meeting 
 

3. Overview of Proposed Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Water Fund 
Town Manager Coffey noted that the proposed Water Fund budget total is $2,323,750, which is a decrease of 
$77,500 from the current budget. Water Fund revenue highlights include a transfer of $271,685 to the Capital 
Reserve Fund for the water treatment plant expansion from our unrestricted net position, a 4% increase in water 
rates, and $147,312 from the Town’s system development fees. Water Fund expenditure highlights include 
replacement of gas and diesel dispensing pumps - $14,600, replacement of fluorescent bulbs with LEDs at Public 
Works - $7,500, upgrade fire alarm system at Public Works - $9,500, sealcoat and re-striping the parking lot at 
Public Works - $5,000, replacement of a 1986 air compressor at water plant - $28,500, continuation of radio-read 
meter change-out program - $40,000 and $75,000 for waterline improvements on Shuford Road waterline, 
Coleman Street waterline, and abandonment of last section of asbestos-cement waterline.  
 

4. Looking Forward 
Town Manager Coffey noted that she believes that there are several pivot points during the fiscal year that are 
logical times to pause and see where the Town is financially. Those points include after the first quarter of sales 
tax revenue has been posted and December/January to reflect mid-year numbers. She would like to conduct a 
study of employee compensation in the coming months and reminded Town Council that the Community Center 
Project and Water Treatment Plan Expansion Project are both underway. The Reems Creek Greenway Project will 
likely be delayed due to NCDOT budget issues.  
 
Concerning the budget, Town Council asked that Manager Coffey: 
(1) include the NCDOT Bicycle and Pedestrian Grant matching funds in the budget; 
(2) look into whether a part-time grant writer would be beneficial; 
(3) look at what other jurisdictions in our area are doing with employee increases; 
(4) re-examine the need for the backup generators for the water system in this year’s budget; 
(5) consider a “stay home-stay safe” mailed fundraiser for the Community Center Project. 
 
 

5. Adjournment 
Councilmember Sherrill made the motion to adjourn; Vice Mayor/Councilmember Jackson seconded and, in a 
roll call vote, all voted to adjourn the Council’s workshop meeting at approximately 7:30 p.m. 

 

 
    _____________________________________________ 
              James Eller, Interim Town Clerk 

3



 

 
Page 1 of 2  May 18, 2020  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes 
 

                  

                   MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Special Called Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, May 18, 2020 

Remote Electronic Meeting 
Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87513712738 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a special called meeting on Monday, May 18, 2020, at  
6:30 p.m. within Council Chambers at Town Hall located at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC, as an electronic 
video meeting via Zoom Meeting.  
 
Councilmembers remotely present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor Doug Jackson, and Councilmembers Dottie Sherrill, 
Jeffrey McKenna and Andrew Nagle. Councilmember Patrick Fitzsimmons was absent.  
 
Staff remotely present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Finance Officer Tonya 
Dozier, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Public Works Director Dale Pennell 
and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Root called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

2. Public Hearing: Code Amendments regarding parking and streets, mandated notices for quasi-judicial 
matters, mixed use development in C-1, C-2, and R-12 districts 
 
Mayor Root opened the Public Hearing 
 
Town Planner James Eller stated that the public hearing is on code amendments to Chapters 25 and 36 related to 
parking and streets, mandated notices for quasi-judicial matters heard by the Board of Adjustment, and mixed use 
development in the C-1, C-2 and R-12 zoning districts. All of the proposed amendments have been reviewed by 
the Planning and Zoning Board and received a unanimous favorable recommendation. 
 
The parking and streets amendments are largely in light of Town Councils recent work in Chapters 24 and 28 and 
ensure code consistency between chapters of the code. Some parking regulations have been removed from a 
traffic portion of code and inserted into the zoning regulations and a vast majority of this language is related to the 
fact that street standards have been consolidated within Chapter 24, so references in the subdivision and zoning 
ordinances need to be reflected of that.  
 
As for mandated notices for the Board of Adjustment for quasi-judicial hearings, the proposed amendments will  
align the Town’s noticing requirements with that of state statute.  The reason for this is that the School of 
Government cautions that a wide notice bubble might subject the Town to a challenge on the issue of standing.  
 

4



 

 
Page 2 of 2  May 18, 2020  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes 
 

Lastly, there is language within the Town Strategic Plan and Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP) that calls for 
the better accommodation of mixed-use development. The proposed amendments would transition mixed use 
development in the C-1, C-2, and R-12 districts from conditional zoning district review to permitted with 
standards.  
 
There was no public comment offered on these amendments and the Mayor concluded the public hearing. 
 

3. Public Hearing: Conditional Zoning District for Multi-Tenant Development on 20 and 30 Garrison Branch 
Road  
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing and asked Town Planner James Eller to give an overview of the application. 
Mr. Eller stated that this proposed conditional zoning district (CZD) to be known as Garrison Reserve, consists of 
4.89 acres and is located at the intersection of Monticello Road and US 25/70. The proposed development is a 
multi-tenant development of approximately 70,000 square feet and, since it is more than 25,000 square feet in 
size, it requires approval as CZD. This multi-tenant development proposes a mix of warehousing, retail and office 
uses. The Planning and Zoning Board has spent a considerable amount of time reviewing this development and 
offers a unanimous recommendation to Town Council with some conditions that are noted in their 
recommendation letter.  
 
Town Planner Eller noted that the applicant has requested a few changes to the conditions shown in the draft CZD 
ordinance from the version in the Town Council packet.  These changes include: (1) removing the out parcel 
noted on the plans from the CZD so that the underlying C-2 zoning district regulations will fully apply to that out 
parcel when development is proposed; (2) modifying the language to allow for similar aesthetic quality to the 
building elevations that were attached and proposing building materials consisting of metal or masonry instead of 
fiber and cement siding, (3) reducing the number of required parking spaces from 159 to 155; and (4) allowing 
three signs to be used for all the businesses rather than the one that is allowed normally in the C-2 zoning district. 
Mr. Eller noted that Tim Brigman, a representative of property owner, and Warren Suggs, an engineer of Civil 
Design Concepts, were present for any comments or questions. 
 
Warren Suggs noted that he can go into further detail but feels that Town Planner Eller mentioned the major 
points within the CZD wording that they wanted Town Council to consider changing. He made himself available 
to answer questions about these requested changes and the project in general at the appropriate time given by the 
Mayor.  
 
Mayor Root mentioned that this is a public hearing on the proposal and there will not be any action taken at 
tonight’s meeting due to the emergency rules controlling public hearings. He indicated that Town Council would 
be recessing the meeting tonight and reconvening on May 20, 2020, at 6pm to further discuss and take action on 
this matter.  
 
There were no comments offered by the public and the Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 

4. Adjournment 
Mayor Root adjourned the meeting at 6:45 p.m. 

 

 
    _____________________________________________ 
              James Eller, Interim Town Clerk 

5



 

 
Page 1 of 5                                                                                                    May 18, 2020  

                                     Town Council Remote Electronic  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

                       

                        MINUTES 
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Regular Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, May 18, 2020 

Remote Electronic Meeting 
Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87513712738 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regularly monthly meeting on Monday, May 18, 2020, at  
7:00 p.m. as an electronic video meeting via Zoom Meeting.  
 
Councilmembers remotely present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor Doug Jackson, and Councilmembers Andrew 
Nagle, Dottie Sherrill, and Jeffrey McKenna. Councilmember Patrick Fitzsimmons joined the meeting at 8:10 pm.    
 
Staff remotely present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Planner James Eller, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, 
Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Public 
Works Director Dale Pennell, and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Councilmember Nagle made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilmember McKenna seconded and 
in a roll call vote all voted in favor of the motion. Motion passed 4-0. Councilmember Fitzsimmons was absent for this 
vote. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Councilmember Sherrill made the motion to approve the minutes from the April 27, 2020 Town Council Meeting as 
presented. Councilmember McKenna seconded the motion and in a roll call vote all voted in favor of the approval of 
the minutes. Motion passed 4-0. Councilmember Fitzsimmons was absent for this vote. 
 

4. General Public Comment  
Mayor Root noted that  usually when the meetings are held at Town Hall we have the citizens go to the podium and 
speak for a maximum of three minutes, but with COVID-19 public health emergency we have had to allow public 
comment in writing in advance of the meeting. Public comments are to be limited to 450 words and the normal rule of 
decorum should be observed. Numerous public comments were received by email and in the Town’s drop box. Mayor 
Root stated that all emails received have been given to Town Council for review and the Town Clerk read as many of 
the public comments as he could in the 18 minute public comment time limit in the chronological order they were 
received. Town Clerk Derek Huninghake mentioned that there were 33 public comment emails and a petition with 
over 135 signatures received, all of which are attached to these minutes. In the time allowed public comments from 
the following were read:  1) Nina Narozny and Barbara Adams at 35 Sandstone Drive, 2) Mary Parker at 31 
Sandstone Drive, 3) John Rukavina at 31 Sandstone Drive, 4) Richard Coble and Lindsey Williford at 76 Loftin 

6



 

 
Page 2 of 5                                                                                                    May 18, 2020  

                                     Town Council Remote Electronic  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

Street, 5) Burt and Donna Anderson at 7 Duncannon Street, 6) Susan Waldman and William Swarts, 7) Steve and 
Frieda Cooper at 5 Duncannon Street, 8) Raymond and Bonnie Russolillo at 26 Robin Roost Road, 9) Gary and Pat 
Whitson at 61 Loftin Street, 10) Dee Lawrence and Diane Amos at 44 Sandstone Drive, 11) Claude Broach at 59 
Loftin Street, 12) Sylvia Valois at 42 Loftin Street, and 13) the emailed petition from Mike Clifford at 48 Loftin Street 
with 135 signatures from residents of Creekside Village.  
  

5. Consent Agenda 
Vice Mayor Jackson moved for the approval of the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Sherrill seconded the motion 
and in a roll call vote all voted to approve all action requested in the Consent Agenda. Motion passed 4-0. 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons was absent for this vote.  
 
A. Monthly Tax Report – Information Only  
B. Approval of Final Subdivision Plat and Improvement Guarantee for Greenwood Park Phase I – Approved 

Final Subdivision Plat and Improvement Guarantee of $208,606.88 for Greenwood Park Phase I 
C. Approval of FY 2019-2020 Audit Contract – Approved FY 2019-2020 Audit Contract 
D. Amendments to Fee Schedule- Adopted amendments to 2019-2020 Fee Schedule with immediate effective date 

 
6. Town Manager’s Report 

Town Manager Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council including 1) a reminder that the Public Hearing on 
the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget will be held on Tuesday, June 9, 2020 at 6 pm; 2) the June Summer Music Series 
event has been cancelled, due to the COVID 19 situation; 3) we have had to cancel three Citizens Academy Sessions 
so far, but have scheduled a makeup for the Zoning and Coding Enforcement session by Town Planner James Eller 
via Zoom on May 28, 2020; and lastly, 4) as Town Council discussed at their last budget conversation, they asked 
staff to move forward on a Bike/Ped grant and she has a resolution in support of the application that Town Council 
will need to consider and take action on.  
 

7. Discussion and Action Items 
A. Public Street Commitment Applications 

Town Manager Coffey noted that the following public street commitment applications have been timely 
submitted for Town Council review and possible action: (1) Weaver Village Way – Aldi, (2) Weaver Village Way 
– Hoopers Creek Storage/Firehouse Subs; (3) Weaver Village Way – Weaver Village Walk Residential 
Development; (4) Fox Lair Crossing – Camsyn Drive and Carden Drive; (5) Reems Creek Villages – Compass 
Park Drive, Al Dorf Drive, Governor Thomson Terrace; (6) Reems Creek Villas – Rabbit Ridge Drive; and (7) 
Creekside Village – Barnett Shoals, Loftin Street, Athena Avenue, Duncannon Street, Seneca Street, Robin Roost 
Road, Sandstone Drive. All of these applications were included in the agenda packet along with a staff analysis 
and recommendation. The Town Manager noted that the staff recommendation that is included is based upon 
current conditions.  

 
(1) Weaver Village Way – Aldi: Staff noted that this private street is a commercial street and the Town 

typically does not include commercial streets within its public street system. Also noted was that the 
recorded right-of-way for Weaver Village Way is only 36 feet in width where the Town’s standard is 45 
feet. For these reasons staff is recommending that the public street commitment application be denied. 
 

(2) Weaver Village Way – Hoopers Creek Storage/Firehouse Subs: Staff noted that the same issues and 
recommendation apply for this section of Weaver Village Way. 

 
(3) Weaver Village Way – Residential Section for Weaver Village Walk: Staff noted that the recorded right-

of-way for Weaver Village Way is only 36 feet in width where the Town’s standard is 45 feet. 
Additionally it was noted that the Town does not maintain any “islands” of public streets that must be 

7



 

 
Page 3 of 5                                                                                                    May 18, 2020  

                                     Town Council Remote Electronic  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

accessed by crossing private streets. For these reasons staff is recommending that the public street 
commitment application be denied. 

Vice Mayor Jackson made a motion to accept staff’s recommendations and deny the applications for public 
street commitment for all three (3) applications pertaining to Weaver Village Way. Councilmember Sherrill 
seconded the motion. In a roll call vote all voted in favor of the motion and the motion passed 4 to 0. 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons did not participate in this deliberation or vote.  

 
(4) Fox Lair Crossing: Staff’s review of the streets showed that these streets were intended to be private and 

were not inspected and construction plans have not been located. Surface inspections indicated that there 
appears to be substantial repair work needed to bring the streets up to Town standards. There is also a gate 
that impedes public access. For these reasons staff recommended that public street commitment 
application be denied. 
 

(5) Reems Creek Villages: Staff’s review of the streets indicates that there is a gate that impedes public 
access and that the developer opted to maintain the private street status to avoid repairs necessary to bring 
street construction up to Town standards. Surface inspections indicated that there appears to be substantial 
repair work needed to bring the streets up to Town standards. For these reasons staff recommended that 
public street commitment application be denied. 

 
(6) Reems Creek Villas: Staff’s inspection of the street indicates that there are many issues that would need 

to be corrected and due to the age of the road construction this street would like be near the top of the 
street improvement schedule should it be accepted. Some of the lots are accessed via a 20-foot wide 
private right of way. For these reasons staff recommended that the public street commitment application 
be denied. 

 
Councilmember Nagle made a motion to accept staff’s recommendation and deny the applications for public 
street commitment for Fox Lair Crossing, Reems Creek Villages, and Reems Creek Villas. Councilmember 
Sherrill seconded the motion. In a roll call vote all voted in  favor of the motion and the motion passed in a 4 
to 0 vote. Councilmember Fitzsimmons did not participate in this deliberation or vote.  

Councilmember Fitzsimmons joined the meeting at 8:10pm and was available for the presentation, discussion and 
deliberation of all of the following matters. 

 
(7) Creekside Village: Staff noted that it has been working with the developer over a period of months to 

establish an agreed upon proposal for the acceptance of the streets within Creekside Village. The Town’s 
staff needs supplemental testing and inspection in order to determine that the Town’s street standards 
have been complied with. The recommended supplemental testing and inspections is set out in a March 
24, 2020, letter from the Town Manager to the developer. The developer asserts that the streets have been 
constructed to Town standards and objects to supplemental testing and inspection. The developer’s letter 
to the Creekside Village homeowners dated May 11, 2020, was included with the agenda packet and a 
statement from Thomas Grella, the attorney representing Serrus Creekside LLC, was received and 
distributed to Town Council in advance of the meeting and is attached to these minutes. Additionally, 
Town Council received many public comments urging Town Council to accept these streets into the 
Town’s public street system. All of those comments are included with these minutes.    
 

Councilmember Nagle made a motion to accept the streets within the Creekside Village development (Barnett 
Shoals, Loftin Street, Athena Avenue, Duncannon Street, Seneca Street, Robin Roost Road, and Sandstone 
Drive) conditioned upon and subject to the supplemental testing and inspections as outlined by the Public 
Works Director with supplemental testing and inspection to occur within 3 months and any repair work to be 

8



 

 
Page 4 of 5                                                                                                    May 18, 2020  

                                     Town Council Remote Electronic  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

completed within 6 months thereafter. Councilmember McKenna seconded the motion. In a roll call vote all 
members voted in favor of the motion and the motion passed with a 5 to 0 vote.  

 
B. Code Amendment – Chapter 24 – Streets 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson reminded Town Council that at its January 27, 2020 meeting, staff reviewed 
some proposed amendments to the Town Code Chapter 24 concerning streets. The purpose of those amendments 
was to provide a policy and procedures for public streets within the Town’s public street system and to provide a 
procedure for private streets to be added to the Town’s public street system. The attached draft ordinance is 
consistent with Town Council’s direction at the meeting and she can answer any questions they may have.  Town 
Attorney Jackson did note that since these amendments are being enacted under the Town’s police power no 
public hearing is required, but that there are a few related land development amendments related to this ordinance 
that would be eligible for action on May 20, 2020, since Town Council just held a public hearing on them.  

Councilmember Sherrill made a motion to adopt the Ordinance Amending Town Code Chapter 24 Concerning 
Streets. Councilmember McKenna seconded the motion and in a roll call vote the motion passed by a unanimous 
vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0.  

 
C. Action on Proposed Code Amendments Regarding Parking and Streets, Mandated Notices for Quasi-

Judicial matters, and Mixed-Use Development in C-1, C-2, and R-12 
Mayor Root noted that Town Council just held Public Hearings on Discussion Item C and by law Town Council 
must wait 24 hours before action can be taken to allow for additional public comment. He proposes that action on 
this item be taken back up for discussion and action on Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 6:00 pm.  

 
D. Action on Proposed CZD for Multi-Tenant Development at 20 and 30 Garrison Branch Road 

As with the previous item, Mayor Root noted that Town Council just held Public Hearings on Discussion Item D, 
and by law Town Council must wait 24 hours before action can be taken to allow for additional public comment.  

 
E. COVID-19 Update 

Town Manager Selena Coffey gave an update and where the Town, County and State are with respect to COVID-
19. Based on the Governor’s briefing on May 18, she thought that some action might be taken mid-week by the 
Governor. At this time, the Town of Weaverville is following the Governor’s orders.  

 
Town Manager Coffey would like to provide $10,000 to the Weaverville Business Association (WBA) to assist 
our local-owned small businesses. She is meeting with the WBA in the morning to discuss ways to hold the WBA 
accountable for the use of the $10,000. Manager Coffey indicated that she and her staff are working on the 
application for the Coronavirus Relief Funds that are being distributed by the County. She said that some of those 
monies could be used to support businesses, including the $10,000 that she is proposing to go to the WBA. 
Manager Coffey asked if there is Town Council support for this $10,000 expenditure. There was a consensus of 
Town Council that this was a good project for the Town as long as there was some accountability on the spending 
of the money by the WBA.  

 
F. Quarterly Report: Finance Department 

Finance Officer Tonya Dozier presented the Quarterly Finance Report from January 1, 2020 – March 31, 2020 
with charts summarizing Revenues and Expenditures that provide comparisons from previous years. These reports 
largely represent pre-COVID numbers so they will be useful in providing a comparison to show the financial 
impact of the pandemic. It is expected that our sales tax revenue will be down for the last quarter of the fiscal 
year, but those figures will not be out until after Sept 1.  Finance Officer Dozier also provided updates on Capital 
Project Funds for both the Community Center Project and the Waterline Extension Project through April 2020, 
and how both projects recently had the first payments made on the construction phase.   

 

9



 

 
Page 5 of 5                                                                                                    May 18, 2020  

                                     Town Council Remote Electronic  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

G. Quarterly Report: Police Department 
Police Chief Ron Davis provided a quarterly report with data from February 2020 – April 2020 and noted that in 
general police officer initiated activity is down sine the emergency orders and social distancing are in effect. 
Overall the police responded to 2,302 calls during the quarter versus 2,807 from the same quarter last year. This 
represents a 18% decrease in activity. Drug offenses, traffic violations, citations issued, arrests and accidents are 
down, but business security checks have increased by 21% and health and welfare checks on citizens are up 24%. 
Shoplifting, larceny of goods, and trespassing are all trending upward. Crime in general is down and there has 
been no reported violent crimes such as robberies, rape, assaults, arson.  

 
H. Quarterly Report: Fire Department 

Fire Chief Ted Williams presented his departmental quarterly report from February 2020 through April 2020. 
There were 434 calls during this period with an average response time for all calls at 6:28 minutes. 6 child 
passenger seats were installed, 31 commercial businesses inspections were conducted and 8 fire prevention and 
education classes were conducted. Inspection reports were scanned into new software during the months of March 
and April.  

 
8. Adjournment 

Councilmember Nagle made the motion to recess the meeting to Wednesday, May 20, 2020, at 6pm, in order to 
discuss and take action on Discussion Items C and D and the Resolution in Support of the NCDOT Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Grant Application. Councilmember McKenna seconded and in a roll call vote all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 8:20 p.m. Motion passed 5-0.  It was noted that the same remote meeting information will be 
used to access the meeting on May 20, 2020 at 6pm. 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
James Eller, Interim Town Clerk 

10



 

 
Page 1 of 3  May 20, 2020  
        Town Council Remote Electronic  

                                                                                                                                                        Recessed Meeting Minutes 
 

                  

                   MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Recessed Meeting 
State of North Carolina Wednesday, May 20, 2020 

Remote Electronic Meeting 
Zoom: http// us02web.zoom.us/j/87513712738 
 
On Wednesday, May 20, 2020, at 6:00 p.m., the Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met to reconvene its recessed 
meeting from May 18, 2020. This meeting was an electronic video meeting via Zoom Meeting. 
 
Councilmembers remotely present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor Doug Jackson, and Councilmembers Dottie Sherrill, 
Jeffrey McKenna, Andrew Nagle, and Patrick Fitzsimmons.  
 
Staff remotely present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Root called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Action on Proposed Conditional Zoning District for Multi-Tenant Development at 20 and 30 Garrison 
Branch Road 
 
Town Planner James Eller gave a quick recap from the Public Hearing on Monday, May 18, 2020. He noted that 
the property is located along Garrison Branch Road at the intersection of US25/70 and Monticello Road.  Town 
Council is being asked to approve an approximately 75,000 square foot mixed use facility that will span across 
three buildings.  
 
Vice Mayor Jackson wondered if the proposed amendment is to change from one sign at the entrance to one sign 
for each building at the entrance. Town Planner Eller agreed that that is his understanding and noted that the 
underlining C-2 zoning district generally only allows one sign per development. Vice Mayor Jackson noted that 
two of the other big development areas have one free standing sign for all the other businesses and he doesn’t care 
for a lot of sign pollution, so he would like to know the reasoning behind it. 
 
Warren Suggs, Civil Design Concepts Engineer, mentioned that the project was trying to merge as many small 
businesses and commercial and office uses as possible into those buildings with the goal of around 12 to 15 per 
building, which would be approximately 30 different types of individual businesses. They started looking at all 
the square footage that would be left if they held to one sign and it becomes not visible, so they would like to have 
the opportunity to show case each building on a separate sign to make it easier for them to be found. Vice Mayor 
asked whether they would be in front of each building or per entrance, since at another development, Weaverville 

11



 

 
Page 2 of 3  May 20, 2020  
        Town Council Remote Electronic  

                                                                                                                                                        Recessed Meeting Minutes 
 

Commons, they only have one sign for the development and not all businesses are identified.  Mr. Suggs 
mentioned that there are two sign locations up near Garrison Branch, outside the right of way and not within 
easements, and a third location more interior to the site.  
 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons noted that these signs would be in addition to the signage on the businesses’ door 
fronts. Mr. Suggs confirmed. Vice Mayor Jackson noted that this is a change from the other major projects that 
we have recently done, and he doesn’t want to see a lot of signage around Town if we can consolidate.  
Councilmember McKenna noted that it would also be proportionate to the number of offices and in the other 
cases there might be fewer offices, so he can see the rationale for trying to create individual areas with their own 
character and he doesn’t want it to be so small you can’t read it. Councilmember Fitzsimmons agreed that the 
Town is already inundated with signage and if each business sign will be visible from Garrison Branch and US 
25/70, additional signage will add little value to the business and a lot of detriment to sign pollution. Mayor Root 
commented that the idea of three signs has been added since the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed it. Town 
Planner Eller confirmed.  
 
Tim Brigman, on behalf of the owner/developer, commented that they are trying to bring something different to 
their spaces by focusing on the small business market. Instead of having large signs on all the businesses like the 
other projects in Weaverville they are looking for a classier look and are trying to differentiate by bringing in 
office retail space for smaller businesses and not fast food chains. The idea is to keep a clean look and not have 
any customers feel outweighed by other businesses signage. They will regulate the signage for each individual 
customer to keep it professional. Councilmember Nagle noted that he wasn’t sure exactly where the signs were 
going. Mr. Brigman mentioned that the three signs would be up on Garrison Branch Road providing some 
identification of businesses and direction. Councilmember Nagle commented that the businesses on the inside 
wouldn’t be visible from Garrison Branch Road, so he wondered if the square footage of the signs was going to be 
triple the sign dimensions or less than what is allowed in one sign. Mr. Brigman noted that they are comfortable 
staying within size limitations of the sign ordinance or even less than is allowed if they don’t need the space. 
 
With consensus to allow up to two smaller signs, Councilmember Fitzsimmons made a motion to approve the 
Ordinance Establishing the Conditional Zoning District Designated as CZD-5 Garrison Reserve Project on 
Property Located at 10 and 30 Garrison Branch Road with the developer requested modifications except that a 
maximum of 2 signs is allowed with a maximum size of 75 square foot per sign. Councilmember Nagle seconded 
the motion. In a roll call vote, all voted in favor and the motion passed 5 to 0.    
 

3. Action on Proposed Code Amendments regarding technical review committee for land development, 
parking and streets, mandated notices for quasi-judicial matters, and mixed used development in C-1, C-2, 
and R-12 
 
Town Planner James Eller brief mentioned that all of the code amendments proposed received unanimous favor 
recommendations from the Planning and Zoning Board and that no public comments were received during the 
public comment period or during their respective public hearings so action on these amendments is proper at this 
time. Vice Mayor Jackson made a motion to approve the Ordinance Amending Town Code Chapters 25 and 36 
Concerning Technical Review Committees, Mixed Use Development, Mandated Notices for Board of Adjustment, 
Streets and Parking.. Councilmember McKenna seconded the motion. All voted in favor in a roll call vote and the 
motion passed 5 to 0.    
 

4. Resolution in Support of Application for NCDOT Bicycle and Pedestrian Grant 
Town Manager Coffey noted that at a recent budget workshop Town Council had indicated that they would like to 
see the Town apply for the NCDOT Bicycle and Pedestrian planning grant. This grant application requires a 
resolution in support of the application and Town Council was asked to consider approval of the resolution 
presented for that purpose.  
 

12



 

 
Page 3 of 3  May 20, 2020  
        Town Council Remote Electronic  

                                                                                                                                                        Recessed Meeting Minutes 
 

Councilmember McKenna made a motion to approve the Resolution in Support of the Application for NCDOT 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Grant as presented. Vice Mayor Jackson seconded the motion. In a roll call vote the 
motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0 
 

5. Adjournment 
Councilmember McKenna made the motion to adjourn; Councilmember Nagle seconded and in a roll call vote all 
voted to adjourn at approximately 6:30 p.m. 

 

 
    _____________________________________________ 
             James Eller, Interim Town Clerk 

13



 

 
Page 1 of 2  February 24, 2020  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

                       

                        MINUTES 
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Workshop, Budget 
State of North Carolina Tuesday, June 9, 2020 
 
Remote Electronic Meeting 
Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86933148422 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regularly scheduled workshop on Tuesday, June 9, 2020, at 
6:00 p.m. via a remote electronic meeting on Zoom. 
 
Council members remotely present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilmember Doug Jackson and 
Councilmembers Dottie Sherrill, Patrick Fitzsimmons, Jeffrey McKenna, and Andrew Nagle.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Planning Director James Eller 
Staff present remotely was: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Fire Chief Ted Williams, 
Police Chief Ron Davis, Public Works Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 

2. Public Hearing on Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 
Mayor Root opened the public hearing on the 2020-2021 fiscal year budget at 6:01 pm.  
Town Manager Selena Coffey began the public hearing by mentioning that she is proposing a few changes to the 
budget that were outlined in her recent budget memo including adding the $10,000 NCDOT Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Grant matching funds and deleting $3,000 in revenue generated by fishing permit fees. 
 
It was noted that no member of the public provided comment via emailing public-comment@weavervillenc.org, 
inserting into a drop box at Town Hall, or mailing to the Town’s PO Box, as advertised on the public hearing for 
written comments; and no member of the public was in attendance in person at Town Hall or via zoom, Mayor Root 
asked for a motion to close the public hearing. Councilmember McKenna motioned to close the public hearing. Vice 
Mayor Jackson seconded and via roll call each council member voted in favor of the motion. Motion passed 
unanimously 5-0. 
 

3. Budget Discussion & Potential Direction to Town Manger 
Mayor Root asked Councilmembers to discuss any issues concerning the proposed budget that they might have. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jackson noted his position that possible pay raises should be revisited and possibly added in January 
rather than budgeted now. After further discussion, including a review by the Town Manager of what other 
jurisdictions in Buncombe County are doing, it was the consensus of Town Council to remove all cost of living 
increases and merit bonuses from the budget and revisit those possible increases in December or January. 
 

14

mailto:public-comment@weavervillenc.org


 

 
Page 2 of 2  February 24, 2020  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Vice Mayor Jackson noted his position that the town should wait on potentially budgeting backup generators for the 
water treatment plant. It was the consensus not to add the capital expenditure for the backup generators to this 
budget. 
 
Councilman Fitzsimmons noted that Council should reconsider the water rate increase due to current economic 
conditions. Vice-Mayor Jackson mentioned that no increase or half of the proposed 4% increase could be explored. 
Councilman McKenna suggested a one year relief from increases to water rates. Town Attorney Jackson noted that 
the proposed 4% rate increase is linked with the USDA loan for waterline construction which is backed solely by 
revenues and expressed concern over eliminating or greatly reducing the water revenues. Finance Officer Dozier 
noted that the proposed increase is based upon the Withers-Ravenel study conducted to secure the USDA loan. Mayor 
Root inquired if increased development could be used to offset a rate increase. It was confirmed that revenues are also 
positively affected by growth in the system from new customers. Finance Officer Dozier noted that fund balance 
could not be used and referred to materials that showed the monthly impact of a 4% increase on the water bills is 
fairly minimal for the vast majority of water customers. Councilman Nagle suggested that the rate increase would be 
minimal for individual payers and the town should not jeopardize the loan. Upon inquiry from Mayor Root, the 4% 
water rate increase proposed by staff based on the Withers-Ravenel study linked with the USDA loan became the 
consensus of Council. 
 
Councilman Nagle inquired as to the shown increase in Town Council expenditure. Town Manager Coffey stated that 
this was in part due to Town Attorney compensation and a FICA increase. It became the consensus of Council that 
staff should explore the possibility of breaking these expenses out in some manner to make it clearer within the 
governing body’s budget line items. 
 
Councilman McKenna noted that the waiver of the fishing permit fee should be advertised as a temporary one-year 
arrangement so as not to appear as a permanent entitlement.  Councilman McKenna also noted that Council should 
explore best practices for protests or demonstrations as an agenda item at a future meeting. 
  
Town Manager Coffey noted that $8,000 has been added to the budget for the first year of corrective action based on 
the ADA Transition Plan, 
 
Mayor Root noted that should individual members of Council desire an additional workshop for discussion of the 
budget on next Tuesday, they should notify Town Manger Coffey by Friday, June 12, 2020, to allow time to provide 
the proper noticing of the special meeting. 
 

4. Adjournment 
Councilmember Nagle made the motion to adjourn; Councilmember McKenna seconded and via roll call each 
remaining member of Council affirmed the motion. Motion passed unanimously 5-0.  
 
 

__________________________________________ 
James Eller, Interim Town Clerk 

15



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 22, 2020   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of                 
June 16, 2020. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

16



6/16/2020
Real Property: 783,958,380$        
Real Property Discoveries: 1,122,100               

Total Real Property:  785,080,480$        
Personal: 73,730,921             
Personal Discoveries: 229,087                  

Total Personal: 73,960,008             
Public Utilities: 5,406,640               
Exemption: (9,473,150)              
Releases: (2,792,494)              
Total Tax Value 852,181,484$        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,983,306               
Personal Property: 281,048                  
Public Utilities: 20,545$                  
Less Under $5 Adjustment (47)                           
Total Public Utilities: 20,498                     
Exemption: (35,998)                   
Releases: (10,611)                   
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,238,243$             

Total Current Year Collections 3,168,909$             
% Collected 97.86%

Total Left to be Collected: 69,334$                  

Prior Years Paid 4,560$                    

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2019-20

17



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: June 22, 2020 

SUBJECT: Appointment of Interim Tax Collector 

PRESENTER:  Town Manager 

ATTACHMENT: Proposed Resolution 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Town Council is asked to appoint a tax collector to finish up the property tax collection 
duties for FY 2019-2020, including the preparation and presentation of the tax settlement. 

NCGS § 105-349 provides that the “governing body shall appoint as tax collector a person 
of character and integrity whose experience in business and collection work is 
satisfactory to the governing body.” By law members of the governing body and the chief 
finance officer are disqualified from serving in this office.  

The Town Manager recommends that the Jennifer Jackson be appointed as tax collector for 
the remainder of FY 2019-2020 so that she can present the tax settlement for that fiscal 
year.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve the attached Resolution Appointment an Interim Tax 
Collector which appoints Jennifer Jackson as Tax Collector until such time as a more 
permanent tax collector can be appointed, and directs her to submit the upcoming tax 
settlement in accordance with North Carolina law.  

18



  
 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
RESOLUTION APPOINTING AN INTERIM TAX COLLECTOR  

 
WHEREAS, NCGS § 105-349 requires the governing body of each municipality 

to appoint a tax collector to serve for a term to be determined by the appointing body 
and until his or her successor has been appointed and qualified; and 

WHEREAS, a person selected to serve as tax collector is required to be a 
person of character and integrity whose experience in business and collection work 
is satisfactory to the governing body; 

WHEREAS, due to the recent resignation of its tax collector, the Town of 
Weaverville finds that Jennifer Jackson possesses those qualities and wishes to 
appoint Jennifer Jackson to serve as tax collector and to carry out all of the duties of 
that office until such time as a successor can be appointed and qualified;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Weaverville Town Council 
hereby appoints Jennifer Jackson as the Weaverville Tax Collector and directs her to 
carry out the duties of the office of tax collector, including specifically the preparation 
and presentation of the tax settlement for FY 2019-2020, and to serve in this office 
until Town Council can appoint a qualified successor. 

ADOPTED this the 22nd day of June, 2020. 
 
 
             
       ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 
 
 
      
JAMES ELLER, Interim Town Clerk 
 
 

19



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  June 22, 2020 

Subject: Budget Amendment – Police Department  

Presenter:   Town Finance Director 

Attachments:  Budget Amendment Form  

 

Description: 

The Weaverville Police Department maintains a Lost and Found drop off for the citizens of 

Weaverville.  Items left at the department from 2015- June 2019 were recently disposed 

of, since claimants were never found.  All attempts to contact owners were made, if an 

owner could be identified.  Cash totaling $175.00 was emptied from unclaimed items such 

as purses and wallets.  With permission of the Town Manager, this amount was donated to 

Cops for Kids. 

The attached budget amendment is necessary so that the funds can be entered into the 

Cops for Kids budget for the current fiscal year. 

 

Action Requested: 

Town Manager recommends approval of the attached Budget Amendment. 

 

20



Budget Amendment FY 2019-2020 

Town of Weaverville 

 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
     
010-430-431-26608  Cops for Kids (Expenditure)  $175.00 
     
     
     
     

 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
     
010-004-300-09028  Cops for Kids (Revenue)                            $175.00 
     
     
     
     

 

Justification:  Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment.  Unclaimed lost 
and found property (cash) from Police Department donated to Cops for Kids. 

    
Authorized by Finance Officer  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Manager  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Council (if applicable)  Date  

 

 
Budget Ordinance Section 7: 

B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds based upon the line 
item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

C. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures and revenues, 
within a department or division without limitation and without a report being required.  

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 monthly, between 
departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same fund. The Budget Officer must make 
an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular meeting of Town Council. 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by Town 
Council, as a budget amendment.  

 

21



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE:  June 22, 2020 

SUBJECT: Temporary Suspension of Town Fishing License Requirement 

PRESENTER:   Town Manager 

ATTACHMENT: Proposed Ordinance 
 

  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Due to the COVID-19 public health emergency the Town Manager has been looking at ways 
to keep the public and Town staff safe and healthy. One way is to decrease interactions 
between administrative staff and the public. In recognition that a large amount of Town 
Hall public traffic is for issuing fishing licenses, the Town Manager recommends that Town 
Council consider a one-year suspension of Town fishing licenses. The decrease in revenue 
due to a temporary suspension of the fishing permit fee has already been included in the FY 
2020-2021 budget. 

Sections 18-37(b) and (c) of Town Code requires a Town fishing license and indicates that 
it must be obtained at Town Hall. An ordinance is therefore necessary to make this 
temporary change. A proposed temporary ordinance is provided for this purpose should 
Town Council wish to proceed on this basis.  

Other fishing rules will continue to apply, including the need for a State of North Carolina 
issued fishing license.  

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to consider adoption of the attached Ordinance Temporarily 
Suspending Section 18-37(b) and (c) of the Weaverville Town Code Concerning Town 
Fishing Licenses. 

22



 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
ORDINANCE TEMPORARILY SUSPENDING SECTION 18-37(b) AND (c) OF THE 

WEAVERVILLE TOWN CODE CONCERNING TOWN FISHING LICENSES 
 

 WHEREAS, the Town wishes to take some affirmative action to decrease the risk of 
spread of COVID-19 in order to keep the public and staff as healthy as possible during the 
COVID-19 public health emergency; 

WHEREAS, Section 18-37(b) of the Weaverville Town Code requires the issuance of 
a Town fishing license for fishing at Lake Louise and Section 18-39(c) indicates that a fee 
must be paid and the permit obtained at Town Hall; 

WHEREAS, due to the COVID-19 pandemic Town Council has determined that the 
benefit of requiring a Town fishing license does not out weight the risk to the health and 
safety of the public and Town staff during the in-person issuance of the Town fishing 
license; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina, as follows: 

1. For the period from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, subsections (b) and (c) 
of Section 18-37 of the Weaverville Town Code of Ordinances are hereby 
suspended. 
 

2. This ordinance shall be effective immediately and shall automatically expire on 
June 20, 2021, at 11:59 pm. 

 

ADOPTED THIS the 22nd day of June, 2020, by a vote of ___ in favor and __ against. 

 
 
__________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor  

 

ATTESTED BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
_________________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
JAMES ELLER, Interim Town Clerk   JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney  
 

23



Town of Weaverville 

Town Council Agenda Item 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments:  

Monday, June 22, 2020 

Town Manager’s Monthly Report 

Town Manager  

Monthly Report  

Description:  

Attached please find this month’s Town Manager report. 

Action Requested:  

No action requested. 

24



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

Town Manager’s Monthly Report 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 

June 2020 

1. July Summer Series Event Cancellation: With the consent of Mayor Root and in continued 
efforts to keep our community safe, the July Summer Music Series event has been cancelled.

2. Citizens Academy: We have held the Administration, Planning, and Fire Citizens Academy 
segments to date. Of these, the Planning segment was held via Zoom. We are planning to 
hold the Police Department segment on July 16, splitting the class into two sessions, in order 
to provide for safe social distancing. As the Governor’s orders change, we are trying to adapt 
so that we can complete the Academy by year-end.

3. Interim Town Clerk:  I have appointed James Eller, who typically serves as Deputy Town 
Clerk, to serve as Interim Town Clerk until I am able to get someone hired for this role.

4. Bike-Ped Application:  We have continued to work to complete the Bike-Ped application and 
submit it by the end of the month. Thank you to Councilman McKenna for assisting in 
gathering letters of support from various community groups and individuals.

5. Quarterly Report on Strategic Plan:  Attached you will find the June 2020 quarterly report on 
the Strategic Plan.

6. Next Workshop Joint Meeting:  As a reminder, the next workshop, to be held on Tuesday, 
July 14 at 6pm, is a joint meeting with the Planning & Zoning Board.

7. Second Grant for Recycling Carts:  We have been notified that we can expect to receive our 
second grant, totaling approximately $13,000, for the purchase and implementation of our 
new recycling carts beginning in July.

25



To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

20
18

-2
02

1 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
t: 

 Ju
ne

 2
02

0 

1 

Go
al

 1
: 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 to

w
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 co

m
m

un
ity

. 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
s (

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

Ac
ti

on
 S

te
ps

) 
Re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

Ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

St
at

us
 

A.
De

ve
lo

p 
co

ns
en

su
s o

n 
w

at
er

 an
d

an
ne

xa
tio

n 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

po
lic

ie
s c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
at

co
ns

en
su

s.

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l  
Pl

an
ni

ng
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

Ja
n.

 2
01

9 
•

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l c
on

se
ns

us
 o

n 
11

/1
3/

18
 a

nd
 1

/8
/1

9 
w

as
 to

 m
ak

e
de

ci
si

on
s o

n 
a 

ca
se

 b
y 

ca
se

 b
as

is
 a

s o
pp

os
ed

 to
 a

do
pt

in
g 

a 
fir

m
po

lic
y 

in
 th

is
 re

ga
rd

.

1)
De

ve
lo

p 
po

lic
y o

r p
ro

ce
du

re
s

to
 g

ui
de

 T
ow

n 
Co

un
ci

l i
n

ap
pr

ov
in

g 
w

at
er

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
ou

ts
id

e o
f T

ow
n 

lim
its

.

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l  
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

Di
re

ct
or

 

N
ov

. 2
01

8 
•

Se
e 

ab
ov

e.

2)
Co

ns
id

er
 th

e d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

fo
rm

al
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nn

ex
at

io
n

pr
og

ra
m

.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
To

w
n 

Co
un

ci
l 

N
ov

. 2
01

8 
•

Se
e 

ab
ov

e.

B.
Re

ex
am

in
e A

sh
ev

ill
e R

ed
ef

in
es

Tr
an

sit
 to

 c
on

si
de

r r
e-

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f b

us
 ro

ut
e g

iv
en

ne
w

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

w
ith

in
 th

e T
ow

n.

un
ci

lm
an

 M
cK

en
na

 
To

w
n 

Co
un

ci
l 

Ye
ar

 2
02

1 
•

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 m

et
 w

ith
 A

sh
ev

ill
e 

Ci
ty

 M
an

ag
er

 a
nd

Bu
nc

om
be

 C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Pl

an
ne

rs
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f a
dd

in
g 

W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

to
 th

ei
r r

ou
te

s. 
Un

fo
rt

un
at

el
y,

co
nt

in
ue

d 
co

nv
er

sa
tio

ns
 in

 th
is

 re
ga

rd
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

ve
nt

ed
 d

ue
th

e 
CO

VI
D-

19
 cr

is
is

.
C.

En
ha

nc
e t

he
 T

ow
n’

s o
ut

re
ac

h 
to

ed
uc

at
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 ab

ou
t t

he
To

w
n’

s s
er

vi
ce

s.

To
w

n 
St

af
f 

On
go

in
g 

•
St

af
f c

on
tin

ue
s t

o 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
’s 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
To

w
n’

s e
-

ne
w

sl
et

te
r i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 p

ub
lic

 a
w

ar
en

es
s o

f T
ow

n
se

rv
ic

es
, f

un
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 e
ve

nt
s.

1)
Co

nt
in

ue
 th

e C
iti

ze
ns

Ac
ad

em
y.

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
  

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 
On

go
in

g 
•

To
w

n 
Go

ve
rn

m
en

t &
 H

is
to

ry
 se

gm
en

t o
f t

he
 C

iti
ze

ns
 A

ca
de

m
y

w
as

 h
el

d 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
16

, 2
02

0.
•

Pl
an

ni
ng

 C
iti

ze
ns

 A
ca

de
m

y 
he

ld
 v

ia
 z

oo
m

 o
n 

Th
ur

sd
ay

, M
ay

 2
8.

•
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t s
eg

m
en

t p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r J

un
e 

18
, 2

02
0.

26



To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

20
18

-2
02

1 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
t: 

 Ju
ne

 2
02

0 
 2  

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
s (

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

Ac
ti

on
 S

te
ps

) 
Re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

Ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

St
at

us
 

2)
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 fi
re

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

s a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 sc
ho

ol
 ev

en
ts

 su
ch

 a
s f

ie
ld

 
da

ys
 a

nd
 ca

re
er

 d
ay

s. 

Fi
re

 C
hi

ef
  

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

On
go

in
g 

• 
W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

es
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 u
po

n 
re

qu
es

t. 

3)
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 co
m

m
un

ity
 o

ri
en

te
d 

po
lic

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s, 
Co

ps
 fo

r 
Ki

ds
, s

ch
oo

l p
ro

gr
am

s,  
cr

im
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
, e

tc
. 

Po
lic

e C
hi

ef
  

Po
lic

e 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t 
 

On
go

in
g 

 

• 
W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t, 

up
on

 h
ir

in
g 

th
e 

ne
w

 S
ch

oo
l 

Re
so

ur
ce

 O
ffi

ce
r, 

ha
s b

ee
n 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 m
or

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 sc
ho

ol
 

pr
og

ra
m

s. 

4)
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 p
ub

lic
 ed

uc
at

io
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t. 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Di

re
ct

or
 

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t  
W

at
er

 
Su

pe
ri

nt
en

de
nt

 

On
go

in
g 

• 
Th

e 
To

w
n’

s P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t p

ro
vi

de
s a

 p
ub

lic
 se

rv
ic

e 
an

no
un

ce
m

en
t o

r a
rt

ic
le

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

th
ei

r s
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 e
ac

h 
m

on
th

’s 
e-

ne
w

sl
et

te
r. 

D.
 

Re
co

gn
iz

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
s o

f e
ac

h 
To

w
n 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t 

in
 se

rv
in

g 
an

 
ev

er
-c

ha
ng

in
g 

an
d 

gr
ow

in
g  

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l  
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

  
De

pa
rt

m
en

t H
ea

ds
 

FY
 2

01
9;

 
On

go
in

g 
 

• 
Ad

dr
es

se
d 

w
ith

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t; 

On
go

in
g.

 

1)
 

Bu
dg

et
 a

de
qu

at
el

y t
o 

m
ee

t 
se

rv
ic

e d
em

an
ds

 (
i.e

. 
pe

rs
on

ne
l, e

qu
ip

m
en

t, 
et

c.)
 

 

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
  

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

  
To

w
n 

Co
un

ci
l 

An
nu

al
ly

 
  

• 
Ad

dr
es

se
d 

w
ith

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t; 

On
go

in
g.

 

2)
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
up

da
te

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 pl
an

. 
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

  
De

pa
rt

m
en

t H
ea

ds
 

An
nu

al
ly

 
 

• 
Ad

dr
es

se
d 

w
ith

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t; 

On
go

in
g.

 

3)
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
To

w
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s a
nd

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t. 

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
  

De
pa

rt
m

en
t H

ea
ds

 
On

go
in

g 
• 

Ad
dr

es
se

d 
w

ith
 a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 b

ud
ge

t; 
On

go
in

g 

 
 

27



To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

20
18

-2
02

1 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
t: 

 Ju
ne

 2
02

0 

3 

Go
al

 2
:  

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
re

gi
on

al
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n.

 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
s (

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

Ac
ti

on
 S

te
ps

) 
Re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

Ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

St
at

us
 

A.
St

re
ng

th
en

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 th
e

As
he

vi
lle

- B
un

co
m

be
 E

co
no

m
ic

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t C

oa
lit

io
n 

an
d  

ot
he

r
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

.

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l 
On

go
in

g 
•

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 co

nt
in

ue
s m

ee
tin

g 
Ec

on
om

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Co
al

iti
on

 (E
DC

) D
ir

ec
to

r a
s n

ee
ds

 a
ri

se
; T

ow
n 

ha
s b

ee
n 

as
ke

d 
to

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

in
 th

e 
ED

C’
s u

pc
om

in
g 

si
te

 a
na

ly
si

s s
tu

dy
, w

ith
 th

e
ne

xt
 m

ee
tin

g 
sc

he
du

le
d 

fo
r J

un
e 

25
, 2

02
0.

B.
Re

co
gn

iz
e 

w
at

er
 a

s a
 re

gi
on

al
re

so
ur

ce
 a

nd
 id

en
tif

y 
re

gi
on

al
ju

ri
sd

ic
tio

ns
 th

at
 w

is
h 

to
 p

ar
tn

er
 in

w
at

er
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n,
 sa

le
 a

nd
d i

st
ri

bu
tio

n.

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l  
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 

Di
re

ct
or

  
W

at
er

 
Su

pe
ri

nt
en

de
nt

 

On
go

in
g 

•
To

w
n 

st
af

f a
w

ai
ts

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 co

nv
er

sa
tio

ns
 w

ith
 M

ar
s H

ill
 in

 th
is

re
ga

rd
.

C.
Co

ns
is

te
nt

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t a

nd
co

lla
bo

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 n

ei
gh

bo
ri

ng
an

d 
re

gi
on

al
 ju

ri
sd

ic
tio

ns
 in

fu
nc

tio
na

l a
re

as
, s

uc
h 

as
 p

ol
ic

e,
fir

e,
 w

at
er

 r
es

ou
rc

es
, e

tc
.

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l  
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t 
He

ad
s 

On
go

in
g 

•
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

 h
as

 o
ng

oi
ng

 m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 o
ffi

ci
al

s f
ro

m
Bu

nc
om

be
 C

ou
nt

y,
 C

ity
 o

f A
sh

ev
ill

e,
 M

ad
is

on
 C

ou
nt

y,
 a

nd
 th

e
To

w
ns

 o
f W

oo
df

in
, B

la
ck

 M
ou

nt
ai

n,
 a

nd
 B

ilt
m

or
e 

Fo
re

st
.

1)
Up

da
te

s f
ro

m
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t
he

ad
s q

ua
rt

er
ly

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
re

gi
on

al
 ef

fo
rt

s i
m

pa
ct

in
g

th
e 

To
w

n.

De
pa

rt
m

en
t 

He
ad

s 
Qu

ar
te

rl
y 

• 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t h
ea

ds
 co

nt
in

ue
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 re

po
rt

s d
ur

in
g 

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l m
ee

tin
gs

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

re
gi

on
al

 e
ffo

rt
s o

r 
co

lla
bo

ra
tio

ns
 w

ith
 n

ei
gh

bo
ri

ng
 ju

ri
sd

ic
tio

ns
. 

2)
Up

da
te

s f
ro

m
 th

e m
an

ag
er

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 to

 m
an

ag
er

m
ee

tin
gs

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
re

gi
on

al
ef

fo
rt

s 
w

ith
 p

ot
en

tia
l

im
pa

ct
s o

n 
th

e T
ow

n.

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Qu
ar

te
rl

y 
• 

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 o

ng
oi

ng
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 o

ffi
ci

al
s f

ro
m

 
Bu

nc
om

be
 C

ou
nt

y,
 C

ity
 o

f A
sh

ev
ill

e,
 M

ad
is

on
 C

ou
nt

y,
 a

nd
 th

e 
To

w
ns

 o
f W

oo
df

in
, B

la
ck

 M
ou

nt
ai

n,
 a

nd
 B

ilt
m

or
e 

Fo
re

st
. 

3)
Up

da
te

s f
ro

m
 th

e M
ay

or
re

ga
rd

in
g 

re
gi

on
al

 e
ffo

rt
s.

M
ay

or
 

M
on

th
ly

 
•

Up
da

te
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
.

28



To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

20
18

-2
02

1 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
t: 

 Ju
ne

 2
02

0 
 4  

D.
 

Di
st

ri
bu

te
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g r

eg
io

na
l p

ro
gr

am
s, 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e t

o 
To

w
n 

ci
tiz

en
s. 

To
w

n’
s M

SD
 

Re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
To

w
n’

s M
PO

 
Re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e  

M
ay

or
 

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

On
go

in
g 

• 
On

go
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 se

rv
ic

es
 in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

To
w

n’
s 

ou
tr

ea
ch

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

 
 

 
 

Go
al

 3
:  T

o 
m

ax
im

iz
e 

be
ne

fit
 to

 th
e 

To
w

n 
in

 la
nd

 u
se

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ef

fo
rt

s. 
 

 
 

 
O

bj
ec

ti
ve

s (
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
Ac

ti
on

 S
te

ps
) 

Re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
Ti

m
ef

ra
m

e 
St

at
us

 
 

 
 

 
A.

 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

oo
ls

 to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
ba

la
nc

ed
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l e

co
no

m
ic

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l  
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Di
re

ct
or

 

Ye
ar

 2
01

9 
• 

St
af

f h
as

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
is

 to
pi

c o
n 

11
/1

3/
18

 a
nd

 
1/

8/
19

. 

1)
 

Re
vi

se
 Su

bd
iv

isi
on

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 

to
 es

ta
bl

ish
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

an
d 

st
re

am
lin

e s
ub

di
vi

sio
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Di

re
ct

or
  

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 

Zo
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 
 

Ja
n.

 2
01

9 
 

• 
A 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 su

bd
iv

is
io

n 
or

di
na

nc
e 

is
 ca

lle
d 

fo
r 

an
d 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
 m

ed
iu

m
 p

ri
or

ity
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ad
op

te
d 

CL
UP

 

2)
 

Up
da

te
 ec

on
om

ic
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t g

oa
ls 

fo
r t

he
 

To
w

n.
 

  

M
ay

or
 R

oo
t  

 
Vi

ce
‐M

ay
or

 
Ja

ck
so

n 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

Ad
vi

so
ry

 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 

Fe
b.

 2
01

9 
  

• 
To

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
 

B.
 

Up
da

te
 th

e T
ow

n’
s 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 L

an
d 

Us
e 

Pl
an

 
(C

LU
P)

. 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Di

re
ct

or
  

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l 

Ju
ne

 2
01

9 
 

• 
St

af
f w

or
k 

co
m

pl
et

e;
 T

ow
n 

Co
un

ci
l a

do
pt

io
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 

1)
 

De
te

rm
in

e w
he

th
er

 p
la

n 
w

ill
 b

e u
pd

at
ed

 in
te

rn
al

ly
 

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l 
Se

pt
. 2

01
8 

• 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

. 
• 

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l a
pp

ro
ve

d 
st

af
f t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
e 

pl
an

 in
te

rn
al

ly
. 

29



To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

20
18

-2
02

1 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
t: 

 Ju
ne

 2
02

0 
 5  

or
 ex

te
rn

al
ly

. 
 

 
 

 
2)

 
Co

m
pl

et
e u

pd
at

e o
f t

he
 p

la
n.

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Di
re

ct
or

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
9 

• 
To

w
n 

Co
un

ci
l a

do
pt

io
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 

3)
 

Im
pl

em
en

t p
la

n.
 

 
To

w
n 

Co
un

ci
l  

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Di

re
ct

or
 

 T
ow

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Ju
ly

 2
01

9 

 

• 
St

af
f c

on
tin

ue
s t

o 
w

or
k 

to
w

ar
d 

th
e 

st
at

ed
 g

oa
ls

 o
f t

he
 C

LU
P 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 p

ri
or

ity
 g

ra
de

s g
iv

en
 in

 co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
Zo

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
. 

C.
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r a
 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

. 
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

  
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Di
re

ct
or

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
9 

 
• 

St
af

f h
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
at

 it
 is

 m
os

t a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
nd

 co
st

-e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 B

un
co

m
be

 C
ou

nt
y 

to
 a

dd
 a

 la
ye

r f
or

 th
e 

To
w

n’
s u

se
 

as
 o

pp
os

ed
 to

 p
ur

ch
as

in
g 

its
 o

w
n 

sy
st

em
. 

1)
 

Co
or

di
na

te
 w

ith
 B

un
co

m
be

 
Co

un
ty

 to
 a

dd
 th

e 
To

w
n 

la
ye

r 
to

 C
ou

nt
y G

IS
. 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Di

re
ct

or
 

 

Fe
b.

 2
01

9 
• 

St
af

f i
s w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 B

un
co

m
be

 C
ou

nt
y 

st
af

f t
o 

ad
d 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
la

ye
rs

. 

2)
 

As
se

ss
 p

re
vi

ou
s m

ap
pi

ng
 

ef
fo

rt
s, 

so
ftw

ar
e a

nd
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Di

re
ct

or
  

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Fe
b.

 2
01

9 
• 

Se
e 

ab
ov

e.
 

 
 

 
 

Go
al

 4
: T

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
a 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 d

ow
nt

ow
n.

 

 
 

 
 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
s (

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

Ac
ti

on
 S

te
ps

) 
Re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

Ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

St
at

us
 

 
 

 
 

A.
 

Co
ns

id
er

 a
 zo

ni
ng

 d
is

tr
ic

t t
o 

se
rv

e 
as

 a
 tr

an
si

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

nd
 co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

di
st

ri
ct

s. 
 

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l  
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Di
re

ct
or

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 &

 
Zo

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 

 

Ju
ne

 
20

19
 

(C
LU

P)
 

 

• 
La

nd
 u

se
 re

gu
la

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
s f

or
 m

ix
ed

 u
se

 o
r t

ra
ns

iti
on

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

as
 g

iv
en

 a
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
CL

UP
. S

ta
ff 

w
or

k 
co

m
pl

et
e 

w
ith

 o
rd

in
an

ce
 a

do
pt

ed
 to

 a
llo

w
 fo

r m
ix

ed
 u

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ith
in

 ce
rt

ai
n 

zo
ni

ng
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

 o
n 

M
ay

 2
0,

 2
02

0.
 

B.
 

De
ve

lo
p 

a 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 to
 ex

pa
nd

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s a

lo
ng

 th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l b

us
in

es
s d

is
tr

ic
t. 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Di

re
ct

or
  

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l 
 

Ju
ne

 
20

19
 

(C
LU

P)
 

 

• 
To

w
n 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 co
ns

en
su

s o
n 

2/
12

/1
9 

w
as

 to
 h

av
e 

st
af

f a
nd

 th
e 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 Z

on
in

g 
Bo

ar
d 

to
 st

ud
y 

th
is

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 C
ou

nc
il.

 
• 

Fu
rt

he
r d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
by

 T
ow

n 
Co

un
ci

l i
s n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 co

m
pl

et
el

y 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e.

 

30



To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

20
18

-2
02

1 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
t: 

 Ju
ne

 2
02

0 

6 

C.
Co

ns
id

er
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
re

gu
la

tio
n 

as
 a 

m
ea

ns
 o

f e
xp

an
di

ng
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

ar
ea

s w
ith

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
 lim

ita
tio

ns
.

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Di
re

ct
or

 

Ju
ne

 
20

19
 

(C
LU

P)
 

•
La

nd
 u

se
 re

gu
la

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
s f

or
 m

ix
ed

 u
se

 o
r t

ra
ns

iti
on

al
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
as

 g
iv

en
 a

 h
ig

h 
pr

io
ri

ty
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

CL
UP

. S
ta

ff
w

or
k 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

ith
 o

rd
in

an
ce

 a
do

pt
ed

 to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r m

ix
ed

 u
se

d
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ith

in
 ce

rt
ai

n 
zo

ni
ng

 d
is

tr
ic

ts
 o

n 
M

ay
 2

0,
 2

02
0.

D.
Pr

ov
id

e i
nf

or
m

at
io

n
re

so
ur

ce
s m

ar
ke

tin
g

do
w

nt
ow

n 
an

d 
its

w
al

ka
bi

lit
y.

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

To
w

n 
St

af
f 

Ap
ri

l 2
01

9 
•

W
al

ka
bi

lit
y 

m
ap

 co
m

pl
et

e.

1)
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

nd
di

st
ri

bu
tio

n 
of

 T
ow

n
w

al
ka

bi
lit

y (
sid

ew
al

ks
)

an
d 

pa
rk

s m
ap

.

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Di

re
ct

or
  

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Ap
ri

l 2
01

9 
•

W
al

ka
bi

lit
y 

m
ap

 co
m

pl
et

e.

2)
Co

lla
bo

ra
te

 w
ith

 th
e

W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e B

us
in

es
s

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

(W
BA

) i
n

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
do

w
nt

ow
n

re
st

au
ra

nt
s, 

re
ta

il 
bu

sin
es

se
s,

ar
t s

tu
di

os
,  b

re
w

er
ie

s a
nd

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
am

en
iti

es
.

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Ap
ri

l 

20
19

 

•
On

go
in

g

E.
Re

se
ar

ch
 g

ra
nt

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r a

ll 
To

w
n

op
er

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

r o
je

ct
s, 

as
w

el
l a

s f
or

 d
ow

nt
ow

n
ef

fo
rt

s.

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t 

H
ea

ds
 

On
go

in
g 

•
Po

lic
e 

Ch
ie

f h
as

 a
pp

lie
d 

fo
r m

on
et

ar
y 

m
at

ch
 o

f $
25

0 
pe

r
pr

ot
ec

tiv
e 

ve
st

s v
ia

 N
CL

M
 p

ub
lic

 sa
fe

ty
 g

ra
nt

 p
ro

gr
am

.
•

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 h
as

 re
ce

iv
ed

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

 $
30

,0
00

 g
ra

nt
 to

pu
rc

ha
se

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
ca

rt
s.

•
St

af
f h

as
 a

pp
lie

d 
fo

r a
 se

co
nd

 g
ra

nt
 to

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
th

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

f
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ca
rt

s.
F.

Ac
t a

s a
 li

ai
so

n 
be

tw
ee

n
do

w
nt

ow
n 

ch
ur

ch
es

 a
nd

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 to

 id
en

tif
y

av
ai

la
bl

e p
ar

ki
ng

do
w

nt
ow

n

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Di

re
ct

or
 

On
go

in
g 

•
Co

m
pl

et
e;

 C
ol

la
bo

ra
te

d 
w

ith
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

ch
ur

ch
es

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
45

pa
rk

in
g 

sp
ac

es
 fo

r b
us

in
es

s o
w

ne
rs

’ e
m

pl
oy

ee
s, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 fr

ee
up

 sp
ac

e 
fo

r d
ow

nt
ow

n 
vi

si
to

rs
’ p

ar
ki

ng
.

1)
W

or
k 

w
ith

 le
ad

er
s f

ro
m

do
w

nt
ow

n 
ch

ur
ch

es
 to

id
en

tif
y p

ot
en

tia
l p

ar
ki

ng
 fo

r
bu

sin
es

s 
em

pl
oy

ee
s a

nd

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Di

re
ct

or
 

Fe
b.

 2
01

8 
•

Co
m

pl
et

e

31



To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

20
18

-2
02

1 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
t: 

 Ju
ne

 2
02

0 

7 

vi
sit

or
s. 

2)
Cr

ea
te

 a
nd

 d
ist

ri
bu

te
 m

ap
s

sh
ow

in
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 in

do
w

nt
ow

n 
W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e.

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
Di

re
ct

or
 

Ap
r. 

20
19

 
•

Co
m

pl
et

e

Go
al

 5
:  T

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
ou

tr
ea

ch
. 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
s (

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

Ac
ti

on
 S

te
ps

) 
Re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

Ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

St
at

us
 

A.
En

ga
ge

 le
gi

sl
at

iv
e r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
re

ga
rd

in
g t

he
 T

ow
n’

s n
ee

ds
.

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l 
 T

ow
n 

M
an

ag
er

 
Ja

n.
 2

01
9 

•
St

af
f r

ec
om

m
en

ds
 th

at
 T

ow
n 

Co
un

ci
l s

ch
ed

ul
e 

a 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

to
de

ve
lo

p 
le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
go

al
s i

n 
20

20
.

1)
H

os
t m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
le

gi
sla

tiv
e

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
pe

ri
od

ic
al

ly
 (e

sp
ec

ia
lly

be
fo

re
 le

gi
sla

tiv
e

se
ss

io
ns

) t
o 

le
ar

n
le

gi
sla

tiv
e p

ri
or

iti
es

 a
nd

to
 e d

uc
at

e 
le

gi
sla

to
rs

 o
n

To
w

n 
ne

ed
s.

M
ay

or
 

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 

On
go

in
g 

•
Se

e 
ab

ov
e.

2)
Di

sc
us

s n
ee

d 
fo

r
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
lo

ng
 th

e
To

w
n’

s c
or

po
ra

te
 li

m
its

to
 ea

se
 la

nd
 u

se
 co

nf
lic

ts
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e r

eg
io

na
l

us
e o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
Di

re
ct

or
 

 T
ow

n 
Co

un
ci

l  
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

 

On
go

in
g 

•
St

af
f a

gr
ee

s t
ha

t t
he

 w
ay

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

is
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

is
 to

 p
ur

su
e 

a
le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
go

al
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
an

 E
TJ

 a
nd

/o
r a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 g

ui
de

lin
es

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 a

nn
ex

at
io

n 
an

d 
w

at
er

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
.

B.
Co

ns
id

er
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s f

or
po

te
nt

ia
l s

pe
ci

al
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n
as

 T
ow

n 
ne

ed
s d

ic
ta

te
.

To
w

n 
At

to
rn

ey
 

On
go

in
g 

•
St

af
f b

el
ie

ve
s t

ha
t t

he
 re

-e
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t o
f t

he
 E

TJ
 th

ro
ug

h
le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
ac

tio
n 

is
 cr

iti
ca

l f
or

 p
ro

pe
r l

an
d 

us
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

lo
ng

th
e 

To
w

n’
s c

or
po

ra
te

 b
or

de
rs

.
•

Sp
ec

ia
l l

eg
is

la
tio

n 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

go
al

s s
ho

ul
d 

be
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
nd

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l l

eg
is

la
to

rs
.

32



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting:                

Subject: 

Presenter:

Attachments: 

June 22, 2020 

Change Order #1 for Community Center Project        

Dale Pennell, Public Works Director 

Change Order #1 and supporting documents 

Description:

The Community Center project is well underway and is on schedule.  The contractor has 
requested approval of Change Order #1 for two items that have arisen.   

Item 1 is a requirement from MSD that a grease trap must be provided for the drain line 
from the kitchen, although this was not required during the permitting reviews prior to 
bidding, totaling $4,843.89. 

Item 2 is a small area of rock that needed removal during excavation for the building 
footings in the northwest corner of the building.  A unit price for rock removal was 
included in the bid documents for this work and accurate measurements were made to 
verify the quantity of rock, totaling $1,741.35. 

The project architect has reviewed this request and recommends approval of Change Order 
#1 in the amount of $6,585.24. 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager and Public Works Director have reviewed the changes requested and 
the Town Manager recommends approval of the change order and corresponding budget 
amendment. The following motion could be used for that purpose:

I move that we approve Change Order #1 for the Community Center Project and the related 
budget amendment as presented. 

Budget Amendment

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



Budget Amendment 

Town of Weaverville 

 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
070-300-000-19900  Community Center – Construction  $6,585.24 
     
     
     
     
     

 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
070-300-000-90000  Community Center - Contingency                         $6,585.24  
     
     
     
     

 

Justification:  Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment.    To cover the 
cost of Change Order #1 for the community center project, requiring a grease trap in the 
kitchen and removal of rocks during excavation. 

    
Authorized by Finance Officer  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Manager  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Council (if applicable)  Date  

 

 
Budget Ordinance Section 7: 

B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds based upon the line 
item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

C. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures and revenues, 
within a department or division without limitation and without a report being required.  

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 monthly, between 
departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same fund. The Budget Officer must make 
an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular meeting of Town Council. 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by Town 
Council, as a budget amendment.  

43



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: June 22, 2020 

SUBJECT: ADA Transition Plan 

PRESENTER:  Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: ADA Transition Plan 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Manager and Town Attorney have been working together on the Town’s compliance 
with the American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA).  

The engineering firm of WithersRavenel has analyzed the Town’s infrastructure for compliance 
with the ADA from an architectural and physical barrier perspective. Areas that were reviewed 
include each of the Town’s buildings, parks, and parking lots, and the sidewalks along public 
streets (both DOT-maintained and Town streets).  

The attached ADA Transition Plan shows areas identified as ADA barriers and proposes a five 
(5) year plan to transition to compliance. Due to their length, the appendices have not been 
included with this agenda item but are available for review at Town Hall.  

The Town Manager has included $8,000 in the draft FY 2020-2021 budget for the remedial items 
listed for the first year. Budgets for subsequent years will require more funding to accomplish 
the corrective action that is noted in the Plan. 

As outlined in the Town’s Title VI Implementation Plan, the Town Attorney, acting as the ADA 
Coordinator and Title VI Coordinator, will be working on the self-evaluation and analysis of the 
non-physical barriers to the Town’s programs, activities, and services.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve the ADA Transition Plan and to consider this Plan when 
adopting budgets in the next five budget years. The following motion could be used: I move that 
we adopt the ADA Transition Plan. 

44



A
D

A
tr

an
si

tio
n 

pl
an

pl
an

J
U

N
E 

20
20

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

EA
V

ER
V

IL
LE

45



2AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Fi
na

l D
ra

ft
 P

ub
lis

h 
Da

te
: J

un
e 

20
20

W
ith

er
sR

av
en

el

84
 C

ox
e 

Av
en

ue
, S

ui
te

 #
26

0 
As

he
vi

lle
, N

C 
28

80
1

w
w

w
.w

ith
er

sr
av

en
el

.c
om

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
W

ith
er

sR
av

en
el

.

46



1
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

In
tro

du
ct

io
n 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

2

Pu
bl

ic
 O

ut
re

ac
h  .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

3

Pl
an

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 1
: I

de
nt

ify
 B

ar
rie

rs
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.4

Ve
rt

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s  .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

4

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
N

et
w

or
k 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.7

Pl
an

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 2
: M

et
ho

ds
 to

 R
em

ov
e 

Ba
rr

ie
rs

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..1
4

Ve
rt

ic
al

 F
ac

ili
tie

s  .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

4

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
N

et
w

or
k 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s  
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..2
0

Pl
an

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 3
: S

pe
ci

fy
 a

 S
ch

ed
ul

e  .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..2
2

Pl
an

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 4
: I

de
nt

ify
 a

n 
AD

A 
Co

or
di

na
to

r  .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..2

8

Fu
tu

re
 S

te
ps

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.2

9

Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..3
0

contents

47



2

Un
de

r 
§3

5-
15

0 
of

 t
he

 A
DA

 T
itl

e 
II 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

m
un

ic
ip

al
iti

es
 w

ith
 

50
 o

r 
m

or
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
m

us
t 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
an

 A
DA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n.

 T
he

 
ge

ne
ra

l p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

 is
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

ci
tiz

en
s 

ha
ve

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 f
ac

ili
tie

s,
 p

ro
gr

am
s,

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
hi

s 
pl

an
 

fo
cu

se
s 

on
 th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 a

nd
 p

hy
si

ca
l b

ar
rie

rs
 to

 a
cc

es
s.

 

Th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

is
 l

oc
at

ed
 i

n 
Bu

nc
om

be
 C

ou
nt

y, 
N

or
th

 
Ca

ro
lin

a,
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
s 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
70

 f
ul

l-t
im

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s.

 W
hi

le
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ith

in
 th

e T
ow

n,
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 st
af

f h
av

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

m
ay

 b
e 

im
pa

ct
in

g 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
m

ob
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

4,
00

0 
ci

tiz
en

s.
 T

he
 d

ec
is

io
n 

w
as

 m
ad

e 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 re

vi
ew

 
of

 th
e 

To
w

n’s
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 to

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y.
 In

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
AD

A 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
tra

ns
iti

on
 p

la
ns

, t
hi

s 
pl

an
:

1.
 I

de
nt

ifi
es

 p
hy

si
ca

l o
bs

ta
cl

es
 in

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 e

nt
ity

’s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 
lim

it 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
its

 p
ro

gr
am

s,
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 to

 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s;

2.
 D

es
cr

ib
es

 in
 d

et
ai

l t
he

 m
et

ho
ds

 t
ha

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

;

3.
 S

pe
ci

fie
s 

th
e 

sc
he

du
le

 fo
r t

ak
in

g 
th

e 
st

ep
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 §

35
.1

50
 o

f 
th

e 
AD

A 
Ti

tle
 II

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 o
ve

r 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 5
 y

ea
rs

; a
nd

4.
 I

nd
ic

at
es

 th
e 

offi
ci

al
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
.

To
 f

ur
th

er
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 A

DA
, 

W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e’s

 T
ow

n 
Co

un
ci

l 
am

en
de

d 
th

e 
To

w
n’s

 A
m

er
ic

an
s 

w
ith

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Po
lic

y 
an

d 
G

rie
va

nc
e 

Po
lic

y 
an

d 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

or
e 

cl
ea

rly
 s

et
 o

ut
 

th
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 is
su

es
 th

at
 m

ig
ht

 
ar

is
e 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
AD

A.
 T

he
se

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 
w

er
e 

ad
op

te
d 

on
 A

pr
il 

27
, 2

02
0,

 a
nd

 m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A 

of
 

th
is

 p
la

n.

Th
e 

To
w

n 
ha

s 
al

so
 a

do
pt

ed
 a

 T
itl

e 
VI

 I
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 w
ill

 
be

 c
on

du
ct

in
g 

a 
se

lf-
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 A

DA
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

pe
rt

ai
ni

ng
 to

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

s,
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 a

re
 u

nr
el

at
ed

 to
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 o
r 

ph
ys

ic
al

 b
ar

rie
rs

. 

Th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 b
ud

ge
ts

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

e 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f r
em

ed
ia

tio
n 

m
ay

 
be

 fo
un

d 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

on
 p

ag
e 

21
 o

f t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t.

in
tr

o
d

uc
tio

n

48



AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N 3
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

As
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

 §
35

.1
50

 o
f t

he
 A

m
er

ic
an

s 
w

ith
 

Di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

Ac
t 

Ti
tle

 
II 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

“A
 

pu
bl

ic
 

en
tit

y 
sh

al
l 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 t

o 
in

te
re

st
ed

 p
er

so
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ith

 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
or

 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s,

 to
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
th

e 
tra

ns
iti

on
 p

la
n 

by
 s

ub
m

itt
in

g 
co

m
m

en
ts

.” 

Th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

re
le

as
ed

 a
 fl

ye
r t

o 
its

 c
iti

ze
ns

 o
n 

Ap
ril

 
29

, 2
02

0.
 T

he
y 

fly
er

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 th

e 
in

te
nt

 o
f t

he
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 P
la

n 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

de
sc

rib
in

g 
th

re
e 

di
st

in
ct

 w
ay

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 c

iti
ze

ns
 w

ou
ld

 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 c
om

m
en

t o
n 

cu
rr

en
t a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s:
 

  »
W

rit
te

n 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 v

ia
 e

m
ai

l, 
tra

di
tio

na
l 

m
ai

l, 
or

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 a
 d

ro
p 

bo
x 

lo
ca

te
d 

at
 T

ow
n 

H
al

l.

  »
A 

te
le

ph
on

e n
um

be
r w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 sc

he
du

le
 a

 co
nf

er
en

ce
 

ca
ll 

w
ith

 th
e 

AD
A 

Co
or

di
na

to
r d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
m

on
th

 o
f M

ay
.

  »
Th

re
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 In

pu
t S

es
si

on
s 

w
er

e 
al

so
 a

nn
ou

nc
ed

 fo
r M

ay
 

14
th

 &
 M

ay
 2

7t
h.

 D
ue

 to
 C

O
VI

D-
19

 s
af

et
y 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, t

w
o 

of
 th

e 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s 
w

er
e 

he
ld

 v
ia

 te
le

co
nf

er
en

ce
 m

ee
tin

gs
, 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

ID
s,

 w
eb

lin
ks

, a
nd

 p
ho

ne
 n

um
be

rs
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 f
or

 p
ub

lic
 u

se
. 

Th
e 

no
n-

vi
rt

ua
l 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
as

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

at
 T

ow
n 

H
al

l u
til

iz
in

g 
pr

op
er

 s
oc

ia
l d

is
ta

nc
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
.

A 
co

py
 o

f t
he

 fl
ye

r m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
B 

of
 th

is
 p

la
n.

p
ub

lic
  

o
ut

re
a

ch

W
hi

le
 n

o 
ci

tiz
en

s 
at

te
nd

ed
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
, M

ay
or

 A
l R

oo
t a

tt
en

de
d 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
re

m
ar

ke
d 

on
 th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ef
fo

rt
. F

ut
ur

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 th

e 
A

DA
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t.

49



4

V
E

R
T

IC
A

L 
FA

C
IL

IT
IE

S

Th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

ow
ns

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
te

s 
se

ve
ra

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
th

at
 a

re
 

op
en

 to
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
ub

lic
. B

ec
au

se
 th

es
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 h
os

t 
ci

tiz
en

s 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e,

 m
ea

su
re

s 
m

us
t b

e 
ta

ke
n 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

al
l p

ub
lic

-fa
ci

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 m
us

t 
be

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

al
l. 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
lis

t d
et

ai
ls

 a
ll 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

op
en

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e:

  »
To

w
n 

H
al

l a
nd

 P
ol

ic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t -

 3
0 

S 
M

ai
n 

St
, W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e,
 N

C 
28

78
7

  »
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t -
 3

 M
on

tic
el

lo
 R

d,
 W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e,
 N

C 
28

78
7

  »
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t -
 1

5 
Q

ua
rr

y 
Rd

, W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e,

 N
C 

28
78

7

  »
W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

 –
 5

0 
Sa

m
s 

Ro
ad

, W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e,

 N
C 

28
78

7

  »
La

ke
 L

ou
is

e 
Pa

rk
 - 

La
ke

 L
ou

is
e 

Dr
, W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e,
 N

C 
28

78
7

  »
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 N

at
ur

e 
Pa

rk
 –

 1
1 

Pi
ne

 S
tre

et
, W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e,
 N

C 
28

78
7

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

as
se

ss
 t

he
se

 f
ac

ili
tie

s,
 fi

el
d 

cr
ew

s 
ut

ili
ze

d 
th

e 
“A

DA
 C

he
ck

lis
t 

fo
r 

Ex
is

tin
g 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s”
, 

a 
se

t 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

pr
om

ot
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t o

f J
us

tic
e 

an
d 

th
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

Ac
t, 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 2

01
0 

Am
er

ic
an

 
Di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
Ac

t 
Ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 (
AD

AA
G

). 
Th

es
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
ch

ec
kl

is
ts

 a
llo

w
ed

 fi
el

d 
cr

ew
 to

 h
ol

is
tic

al
ly

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

To
w

n’s
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

 d
et

ai
le

d 
ac

cu
ra

cy
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 t
he

 c
he

ck
lis

ts
, fi

el
d 

cr
ew

s 
w

er
e 

ou
tfi

tte
d 

w
ith

 a
 ta

bl
et

 e
qu

ip
pe

d 
w

ith
 a

 c
am

er
a,

 m
ea

su
rin

g 
ta

pe
 a

nd
 a

n 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
le

ve
l f

or
 d

im
en

si
on

al
 c

al
cu

la
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

er
so

na
l p

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t f

or
 s

af
et

y.
 C

op
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 c

he
ck

lis
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
C 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t.

At
 la

rg
e,

 th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e’s

 v
er

tic
al

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
co

nt
ai

n 
fe

w
 b

ar
rie

rs
 

to
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y.

 F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 m

an
y 

of
 t

he
 i

te
m

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
 b

y 
fie

ld
 

cr
ew

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 s
im

pl
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

fix
ed

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
qu

ic
kl

y 
an

d 
at

 n
om

in
al

 c
os

ts
. W

hi
le

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 v

er
tic

al
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

in
 th

is
 p

la
n,

 th
e 

AD
A 

Co
or

di
na

to
r m

us
t e

xe
rc

is
e 

so
un

d 
ju

dg
em

en
t a

nd
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

w
he

n 
it 

co
m

es
 to

 v
er

tic
al

 fa
ci

lit
y 

fix
es

. 
Th

e 
co

or
di

na
to

r m
ay

 e
le

ct
 to

 e
m

pl
oy

 p
ro

ce
du

ra
l c

or
re

ct
io

ns
 a

s 
op

po
se

d 
to

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 if

 p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

in
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

. 

Pl
ea

se
 s

ee
 T

ab
le

s 
1-

5 
fo

r 
a 

de
ta

ile
d 

lis
t 

of
 f

ai
le

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 

W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e:

p
la

n 
re

q
ui

re
m

en
t 

1: 
id

en
ti

fy
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

50



5
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Ch
ec

kl
is

t 
Ite

m
Fa

ilu
re

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

1.
2 

- 1
.5

, 
1.

9 
& 

1.
10

La
ck

 o
f a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
pa

rk
in

g.

2.
31

Do
or

 s
ig

ns
 n

ot
 m

ou
nt

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

48
" a

nd
 

60
" a

bo
ve

 th
e 

flo
or

.

3.
2

N
o 

si
gn

s 
at

 in
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
ile

ts
 d

ire
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 to

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
ile

ts
.

3.
11

M
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
at

hr
oo

m
 d

oo
rs

 
re

qu
ire

 e
xc

es
si

ve
 fo

rc
e 

to
 o

pe
n.

3.
20

Ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 s

ta
ll's

 c
oa

t h
oo

ks
 s

et
 to

o 
hi

gh
.

Ta
bl

e 
1:

 T
ow

n 
H

al
l/P

ol
ic

e 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t B
ar

rie
rs

Ch
ec

kl
is

t 
Ite

m
Fa

ilu
re

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

2.
45

Do
or

s 
to

 b
ui

ld
in

g'
s 

pu
bl

ic
 e

nt
ra

nc
e 

re
qu

ire
 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
fo

rc
e 

to
 o

pe
n.

3.
11

M
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
at

hr
oo

m
 d

oo
rs

 
re

qu
ire

 e
xc

es
si

ve
 fo

rc
e 

to
 o

pe
n.

3.
20

Ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 s

ta
ll's

 c
oa

t h
oo

ks
 s

et
 to

o 
hi

gh
.

3.
23

M
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ba

th
ro

om
 s

in
ks

 a
re

 in
st

al
le

d 
at

 
an

 in
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 h
ei

gh
t. 

3.
32

M
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
to

ile
ts

 a
re

 in
st

al
le

d 
at

 a
n 

in
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 h
ei

gh
t. 

3.
44

Ad
eq

ua
te

 d
oo

r p
ul

ls
 n

ot
 p

re
se

nt
 o

n 
bo

th
 s

id
es

 
of

 m
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
st

al
l d

oo
rs

.

4.
60

W
at

er
 fo

un
ta

in
 s

po
ut

 is
 to

o 
hi

gh
 fo

r 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 u
se

.

Ta
bl

e 
2:

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t B

ar
rie

rs

51



6AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e’s

 W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t 
Pl

an
t 

is
 n

ot
 n

or
m

al
ly

 o
pe

n 
to

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 T
ow

n 
ho

st
s 

an
 a

nn
ua

l 
Ci

tiz
en

’s 
Ac

ad
em

y 
th

at
 e

du
ca

te
s 

ci
tiz

en
s 

on
 t

he
 

w
or

ki
ng

s 
of

 to
w

n 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t. 
Th

is
 C

iti
ze

n’s
 A

ca
de

m
y 

w
ill

 to
ur

 th
e 

W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
 

as
 p

ar
t o

f o
ne

 o
f t

he
 s

es
si

on
s.

 B
ec

au
se

 o
f t

hi
s 

un
iq

ue
 s

itu
at

io
n 

of
 p

ub
lic

 a
cc

es
s 

in
to

 a
n 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

ar
ea

, t
he

 W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
 w

as
 a

ss
es

se
d 

in
 a

 u
ni

qu
e 

m
an

or
. T

he
 

fie
ld

 s
ur

ve
yo

r m
et

 w
ith

 th
e 

W
at

er
 S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t, 
an

d 
w

as
 le

d 
on

 th
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 to
ur

 o
f t

he
 

fa
ci

lit
y.

 T
he

 s
ur

ve
yo

r a
ss

es
se

d 
al

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
th

at
 th

e 
Ci

tiz
en

’s 
Ac

ad
em

y 
w

ou
ld

 in
te

ra
ct

 w
ith

 
an

d 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

a 
lim

ite
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 a
na

ly
si

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
to

ur
 p

at
h.

Th
e T

ow
n 

of
 W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
ha

s 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
La

ke
 L

ou
is

e 
Pa

rk
 b

at
hr

oo
m

s 
w

er
e 

bo
th

 a
nt

iq
ua

te
d 

an
d 

no
t f

ul
ly

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e.

 B
ec

au
se

 o
f t

hi
s,

 th
es

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s a

re
 sc

he
du

le
d 

to
 b

e 
de

m
ol

is
he

d.
 N

ew
 A

DA
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 b
at

hr
oo

m
s 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ye

ar
. B

ec
au

se
 o

f t
hi

s,
 b

at
hr

oo
m

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r t
he

 p
ar

k 
w

er
e 

no
t s

ur
ve

ye
d.

 R
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 th

es
e 

ba
th

ro
om

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

at
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n.

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
, 

as
 a

 p
ar

t 
of

 i
ts

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fi

sh
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
, 

th
e 

N
C 

W
ild

lif
e 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
Co

m
m

is
si

on
 re

ce
nt

ly
 in

st
al

le
d 

an
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
fis

hi
ng

 p
ie

r a
t t

he
 s

ou
th

er
n 

en
d 

of
 L

ak
e 

Lo
ui

se
. T

hi
s 

pi
er

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 fo
rw

ar
d-

th
in

ki
ng

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l e
qu

al
ity

, a
nd

 th
e 

To
w

n 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
is

 e
ff

or
t b

y 
ad

di
ng

 a
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

ta
ll 

to
 it

s 
ex

is
tin

g 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t i
n 

th
is

 a
re

a.

Ch
ec

kl
is

t 
Ite

m
Fa

ilu
re

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

1.
3

N
o 

va
n-

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 s

pa
ce

 lo
ca

te
d 

at
 th

e 
pl

an
t.

1.
9

N
o 

cu
rb

 ra
m

p 
ac

ce
ss

 fr
om

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
t t

o 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g.

(V
ar

io
us

)
N

o 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
at

hr
oo

m
s 

ex
is

t 
on

 th
e 

fir
st

 fl
oo

r. 
Se

co
nd

 fl
oo

r 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 o
nl

y 
by

 s
ta

irs
.

Ta
bl

e 
4:

 W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
 B

ar
rie

rs
 

Fi
gu

re
 1

: L
ak

e 
Lo

ui
se

 B
at

hr
oo

m
s

Ch
ec

kl
is

t 
Ite

m
Fa

ilu
re

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

3.
12

Cl
os

er
 fo

r m
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ba

th
ro

om
s 

cl
os

es
 to

o 
qu

ic
kl

y 
an

d 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

. 

3.
26

Pi
pe

s 
be

lo
w

 m
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
si

nk
s 

ar
e 

no
t i

ns
ul

at
ed

 o
r p

ro
te

ct
ed

.

3.
34

Re
ar

 g
ra

b 
ba

r i
n 

m
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ba

th
ro

om
s 

is
 n

ot
 3

6"
 lo

ng
.

4.
9

W
at

er
 fo

un
ta

in
 p

ro
tr

ud
es

 in
to

 c
irc

ul
at

io
n 

pa
th

 a
t a

n 
un

sa
fe

 h
ei

gh
t. 

4.
20

Fi
re

 a
la

rm
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 s

tro
be

 li
gh

ts
.

Ta
bl

e 
3:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t B

ar
rie

rs
 

52



7
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Th
e 

To
w

n’s
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 N

at
ur

e 
Pa

rk
 is

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

m
or

e 
na

tu
ra

l c
on

di
tio

n 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

t t
he

 a
re

a’s
 w

ild
lif

e.
 A

s 
su

ch
, 

th
e 

pa
rk

 m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

 n
at

ur
al

 s
lo

pi
ng

 to
po

gr
ap

hy
 a

nd
 is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

w
ith

 
m

ul
ch

ed
 fo

ot
pa

th
s 

an
d 

gr
av

el
. I

t o
ff

er
s 

gu
es

ts
 a

 p
la

ce
 to

 g
et

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
 

pa
ve

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 to
 lo

se
 th

em
se

lv
es

 in
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

As
 p

ar
t o

f 3
6 

CF
R 

Pa
rt

 1
19

1 
RI

N
 3

01
4-

AA
22

: A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 B

ar
rie

rs
 A

ct
 

Ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 G
ui

de
lin

es
; O

ut
do

or
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Ar
ea

s,
 i

t 
is

 a
ss

er
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 N

at
ur

e 
Pa

rk
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ex
em

pt
 f

ro
m

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
un

de
r 

th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
th

at
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ou
ld

 f
un

da
m

en
ta

lly
 a

lte
r 

th
e 

fu
nc

tio
n 

or
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f t
he

 fa
ci

lit
y 

or
 s

et
tin

g.
 It

 is
 a

rg
ue

d 
th

at
 p

av
in

g 
or

 
re

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
tra

ils
 w

ou
ld

 im
pa

ct
 th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

es
th

et
ic

, 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

k’s
 fu

nc
tio

n.

 

P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 N

E
T

W
O

R
K

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

re
at

e 
an

 e
ffi

ci
en

t i
nv

en
to

ry
 a

nd
 u

lti
m

at
el

y d
es

ig
n 

an
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

AD
A 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
Pl

an
, 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 s

ta
ff

 w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

 W
ith

er
sR

av
en

el
 

pe
rs

on
ne

l 
to

 c
on

du
ct

 a
 h

ol
is

tic
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 t

he
 T

ow
n’s

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

ne
tw

or
k.

 
Co

ns
ul

tin
g 

st
af

f 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

a 
“b

oo
ts

 
on

 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

” 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f f

ea
tu

re
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ite

m
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ra
m

p 
sl

op
e,

 p
re

se
nc

e 
of

 d
et

ec
ta

bl
e 

do
m

es
, s

id
ew

al
k 

sl
op

e,
 e

ve
n 

la
nd

in
g 

pa
ds

, p
ro

pe
r c

ro
ss

 
w

al
k 

st
rip

in
g,

 e
tc

. 

To
 m

ak
e 

th
is

 fi
el

d 
su

rv
ey

 m
or

e 
effi

ci
en

t, 
su

rv
ey

 c
re

w
s 

le
ve

ra
ge

d 
th

e 
ne

tw
or

k’s
 c

ur
b 

ra
m

ps
 in

ve
nt

or
y 

as
 s

ur
ve

y 
an

ch
or

 p
oi

nt
s,

 c
on

du
ct

in
g 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 h

ea
lth

 f
ro

m
 e

ac
h 

ra
m

p.
 T

he
 T

ow
n 

of
 

W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

co
nt

ai
ns

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

14
6 

cu
rb

 ra
m

ps
. F

ig
ur

e 
3 

de
pi

ct
s 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
 p

oi
nt

s 
ut

ili
ze

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fie
ld

 a
na

ly
si

s.

Ch
ec

kl
is

t I
te

m
Fa

ilu
re

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

P1
 &

 P
2

Sw
in

gs
 d

o 
no

t c
on

ta
in

 a
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 ro

ut
e.

P2
0

Ci
rc

ul
ar

 h
an

dr
ai

l s
ur

fa
ce

 
ex

ce
ed

s 
gr

ip
 d

ia
m

et
er

.

1.
4 

- 1
.1

1
N

or
th

er
n 

lo
t a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

rr
ie

rs

1.
27

Ra
m

p 
ru

nn
in

g 
sl

op
e 

is
 to

o 
st

ee
p.

Ta
bl

e 
5:

 L
ak

e 
Lo

ui
se

 P
ar

k

Fi
gu

re
 2

: A
cc

es
si

bl
e 

Fi
sh

in
g 

Pi
er

53



8AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
, T

he
 T

ow
n 

of
 W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
st

af
f 

an
d 

W
ith

er
sR

av
en

el
 

pe
rs

on
ne

l 
w

or
ke

d 
to

ge
th

er
 i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 c

re
at

e 
an

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
fie

ld
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

to
ol

 t
ha

t 
su

rv
ey

 c
re

w
s 

co
ul

d 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

on
-s

ite
 a

nd
 

co
lle

ct
 a

ll 
pe

rt
in

en
t 

da
ta

 i
n 

a 
ge

or
ef

er
en

ce
d,

 u
ni

fo
rm

 m
an

ne
r. 

Co
ns

ul
tin

g 
st

af
f 

em
pl

oy
ed

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

Co
lle

ct
or

 f
or

 A
rc

G
IS

, 
a 

so
ft

w
ar

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
be

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
ta

bl
et

 u
se

 s
o 

th
at

 fi
el

d 
cr

ew
s 

m
ay

 c
ol

le
ct

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
da

ta
 o

n-
si

te
. 

Fi
el

d 
cr

ew
s 

w
er

e 
ou

tfi
tte

d 
w

ith
 a

 ta
bl

et
 e

qu
ip

pe
d 

w
ith

 C
ol

le
ct

or
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

an
d 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 g

eo
re

fe
re

nc
in

g 
pi

ct
ur

es
 ta

ke
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
m

ea
su

rin
g 

ta
pe

 a
nd

 a
n 

el
ec

tro
ni

c l
ev

el
 fo

r d
im

en
si

on
al

 ca
lc

ul
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
pe

rs
on

al
 p

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

fo
r 

sa
fe

ty
. 

Th
e 

fie
ld

 s
ur

ve
y 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
D 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t.

Fi
gu

re
 3

: S
ur

ve
y 

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 M
ap

54



9
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Fi
el

d 
su

rv
ey

s 
w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
04

/1
5/

20
20

 &
 0

5/
22

/2
02

0.
 

Cr
ew

s 
w

er
e 

in
st

ru
ct

ed
 t

o 
ta

ke
 a

 g
eo

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 p

ho
to

gr
ap

h 
of

 
ea

ch
 v

io
la

tio
n 

an
d 

ea
ch

 c
ur

b 
ra

m
p 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 T

ow
n,

 a
nd

 lo
g 

al
l 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

ei
r t

ab
le

t. 
Du

rin
g 

fie
ld

 a
na

ly
si

s,
 c

re
w

s 
lo

gg
ed

 9
4 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 A

DA
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y.

 
Cu

rb
 ra

m
p 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

as
 s

ur
ve

ye
d 

as
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

po
in

t c
on

ta
in

in
g 

m
ul

tip
le

 q
ua

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 e
ac

h 
be

 in
te

rp
re

te
d 

as
 a

 b
ar

rie
r 

to
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

. F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

cu
rb

 ra
m

p 
co

ul
d 

be
 le

ss
 th

an
 

4 
fe

et
 w

id
e 

(1
st

 v
io

la
tio

n)
, l

ac
k 

de
te

ct
ab

le
 w

ar
ni

ng
 d

om
es

 (
2n

d 
vi

ol
at

io
n)

, a
nd

 h
av

e 
a 

cr
os

s 
sl

op
e 

gr
ea

te
r t

ha
n 

2%
 (3

rd
 v

io
la

tio
n)

. 
Th

is
 w

ou
ld

 re
su

lt 
in

 th
e 

cu
rb

 ra
m

p 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

 b
ei

ng
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
a 

fa
ili

ng
 p

ie
ce

 o
f, 

no
t 3

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
fa

ilu
re

s.
 F

ig
ur

e 
4 

de
pi

ct
s 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

pa
ss

/f
ai

l c
on

cl
us

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 1

46
 s

ur
ve

y 
ar

ea
s 

as
se

ss
ed

. 

It 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

no
te

 th
at

, w
hi

le
 9

4 
of

 1
46

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 

on
e 

or
 m

or
e 

fa
ilu

re
s 

is
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t, 
it 

is
 n

ot
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
 te

st
am

en
t 

to
 th

e 
To

w
n’s

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 q

ua
lit

y.
 A

s 
w

ith
 m

an
y 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, t

he
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 o

f 
cu

rb
 r

am
p,

 s
id

ew
al

k,
 a

nd
 c

ro
ss

 
w

al
k 

de
si

gn
 h

av
e 

ev
ol

ve
d 

ov
er

 t
he

 y
ea

rs
. W

ha
t 

w
as

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

a 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 1

99
0 

is
 n

ot
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 to

da
y.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, i

t i
s 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 th

e 
To

w
n’s

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

pp
ro

ac
h 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ne

tw
or

k 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
vi

a 
lo

ca
tio

n 
pr

io
rit

y 
an

d 
no

t f
ai

lu
re

 
co

nd
iti

on
s.

 T
hi

s 
al

lo
w

s 
th

e 
To

w
n 

to
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

so
un

d 
ju

dg
m

en
t 

in
 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

of
 im

po
rt

an
t, 

w
id

el
y-

us
ed

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 r
at

he
r 

th
an

 t
he

 
sp

ot
 re

pa
ir 

of
 p

oi
nt

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
m

os
t l

og
ge

d 
fa

ilu
re

s.

Ad
di

tio
na

l n
et

w
or

k 
fig

ur
es

 c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 A
PP

EN
DI

X 
E 

of
 t

hi
s 

do
cu

m
en

t.
Fi

gu
re

 4
: P

as
s/

Fa
il 

Co
nc

lu
si

on

55



10AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Fi
gu

re
 5

: S
uffi

ci
en

t F
ea

tu
re

s
Fi

gu
re

 6
: B

ar
rie

r E
xa

m
pl

e

Fi
gu

re
 5

 a
bo

ve
 d

ep
ic

ts
 m

an
y 

of
 th

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
fe

at
ur

es
 th

at
 fi

el
d 

cr
ew

s 
ar

e 
lo

ok
in

g 
fo

r i
n 

th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ne

tw
or

k.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 c
le

ar
ly

 d
et

ec
ta

bl
e 

do
m

es
 p

re
se

nt
 a

t t
he

 c
ur

b 
ra

m
p.

 T
he

 ra
m

p 
is

 fl
us

h 
w

ith
 th

e 
ro

ad
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

an
d 

cl
ea

r s
tr

ip
in

g 
is

 p
re

se
nt

. S
lo

pe
s 

ar
e 

sm
oo

th
 a

nd
 n

ot
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 a
nd

 
si

de
w

al
k 

sl
ab

s 
ar

e 
flu

sh
 w

ith
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
.

Fi
gu

re
 6

 d
ep

ic
ts

 a
 f

ew
 is

su
es

 t
ha

t 
co

un
t 

as
 b

ar
rie

rs
 t

o 
ac

ce
ss

. 
Fo

r 
st

ar
te

rs
, t

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

de
te

ct
ab

le
 d

om
es

 p
re

se
nt

 a
t t

he
 ra

m
p.

 T
he

 ra
m

p 
al

so
 d

oe
s 

no
t l

ea
d 

to
 a

 le
ve

l 4
-fo

ot
 b

y 
4-

fo
ot

 la
nd

in
g,

 m
ak

in
g 

it 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

us
in

g 
a 

w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

to
 a

sc
en

d.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly,
 t

he
 r

am
p 

its
el

f 
di

re
ct

s 
th

e 
us

er
 le

av
in

g 
th

e 
si

de
w

al
k 

di
re

ct
ly

 in
to

 th
e 

st
re

et
 in

st
ea

d 
of

 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
ne

xt
 ra

m
p.

W
hi

le
 th

e 
fie

ld
 s

ur
ve

y 
lis

t i
s 

in
te

nd
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

, b
ar

rie
rs

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
ca

n 
ap

pe
ar

 in
 p

le
th

or
a 

of
 w

ay
s,

 s
om

e 
un

fo
re

se
en

. T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
im

ag
es

 d
ep

ic
t s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 th
e 

fie
ld

 s
ur

ve
y 

th
at

 c
an

 h
el

p 
ill

um
in

at
e 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
 fi

nd
in

gs
.

56



11
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

M
an

y 
fa

ct
or

s 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

7 
ar

e 
co

rr
ec

t. 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 
w

id
e 

si
de

w
al

k 
w

ith
 a

 g
en

tle
 r

un
ni

ng
 s

lo
pe

 a
nd

 
cr

os
s 

sl
op

e 
an

d 
th

e 
ra

m
p 

le
ad

s 
di

re
ct

ly
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
dr

iv
ew

ay
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

w
o 

m
ai

n 
is

su
es

 s
ta

nd
 o

ut
 w

ith
 

th
is

 e
xa

m
pl

e;
 1

. T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
do

m
es

. 2
. T

he
 ru

nn
in

g 
sl

op
e 

of
 th

e 
ra

m
p 

is
 m

uc
h 

st
ee

pe
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

1:
12

 ra
tio

 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y.

Fi
gu

re
 8

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

s 
th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 o
f 

un
ev

en
 

la
nd

in
g 

lip
s.

 N
av

ig
at

io
n 

us
in

g 
a 

w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
cu

rb
 w

ou
ld

 re
pr

es
en

t a
 g

re
at

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
fo

r 
so

m
e.

Fi
gu

re
 9

 r
ei

te
ra

te
s 

m
an

y 
of

 t
he

 
fa

ct
or

s 
se

en
 b

ef
or

e 
bu

t e
xe

m
pl

ifi
es

 
th

e 
la

ck
 o

f 
a 

le
ve

l 4
-fo

ot
 b

y 
4-

fo
ot

 
la

nd
in

g 
pa

d 
at

 th
e 

to
p 

of
 th

e 
ra

m
p.

 
Us

er
s 

us
in

g 
a 

w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

w
ou

ld
 

as
ce

nd
 

th
is

 
ra

m
p 

di
re

ct
ly

 
in

to
 

th
e 

gr
as

s 
at

 t
he

 t
op

. 
Th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
di

re
ct

io
na

l d
es

ig
n.

Fi
gu

re
 7

: B
ar

rie
r E

xa
m

pl
e

Fi
gu

re
 8

: B
ar

rie
r E

xa
m

pl
e

Fi
gu

re
 9

: B
ar

rie
r E

xa
m

pl
e

57



12AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

W
hi

le
 t

he
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
10

 a
pp

ea
r 

le
ve

l, 
th

e 
na

rr
ow

 
si

de
w

al
k 

an
d 

ob
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
ut

ili
ty

 p
ol

e 
an

d 
m

ai
lb

ox
 

m
ay

 p
re

ve
nt

 w
he

el
ch

ai
r u

se
rs

 fr
om

 n
av

ig
at

in
g 

th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

as
 th

e 
w

id
th

 re
du

ct
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
to

o 
gr

ea
t.

Th
es

e 
ex

am
pl

es
 h

el
p 

le
nd

 i
ns

ig
ht

 i
nt

o 
th

e 
fie

ld
 s

ur
ve

y 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
th

e 
va

rie
d 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 t

he
 T

ow
n’s

 n
et

w
or

k.
 T

ab
le

 6
 d

et
ai

ls
 t

he
 b

ar
rie

r 
co

un
ts

 th
at

 w
er

e 
id

en
tifi

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

To
w

n 
ne

tw
or

k.

Fi
gu

re
 1

0:
 B

ar
rie

r E
xa

m
pl

e
Ch

ec
kl

is
t I

te
m

Fa
ilu

re
 

De
sc

rip
tio

n

Cu
rb

 ra
m

p 
di

re
ct

io
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 le
ad

 to
 c

ro
ss

in
g

13

Un
ev

en
 L

an
di

ng
70

Le
ss

 th
an

 4
-F

oo
t w

id
th

21

G
re

at
er

 th
an

 8
.3

%
 ru

nn
in

g 
sl

op
e

10

M
or

e 
th

an
 2

%
 c

ro
ss

 s
lo

pe
16

N
o 

2-
fo

ot
 s

id
e 

de
te

ct
ab

le
 w

ar
ni

ng
 d

om
es

 o
r o

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls
50

N
o 

4 
x 

4 
le

ve
l a

t t
op

 o
f c

ur
b 

ra
m

p
19

4 
x 

4 
la

nd
in

g 
no

t l
ev

el
16

Cu
rb

 ra
m

p 
fla

re
s 

ex
ce

ed
 m

ax
 s

lo
pe

10

Ph
ys

ic
al

 o
bs

tr
uc

tio
ns

5

Ta
bl

e 
6:

 F
ai

le
d 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s

58



13
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

59



14

Th
e 

“A
DA

 C
he

ck
lis

t 
fo

r 
Ex

is
tin

g 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s”

 i
s 

no
t 

on
ly

 a
n 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 
re

so
ur

ce
 f

or
 b

ar
rie

r 
id

en
tifi

ca
tio

n,
 b

ut
 i

t 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

us
er

s 
w

ith
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ba

rr
ie

r r
em

ov
al

 te
ch

ni
qu

es
 fo

r e
ac

h 
fa

ile
d 

fa
ci

lit
y.

 T
ha

t 
be

in
g 

no
te

d,
 i

t 
is

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 a

 l
ic

en
se

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 r
ev

ie
w

 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
fa

ile
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

-p
er

so
n 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

 
in

si
gh

t a
nd

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
co

st
s 

fo
r b

ar
rie

r r
em

ov
al

. T
ab

le
s 

7-
11

 d
et

ai
l t

he
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ba

rr
ie

r r
em

ov
al

 a
ct

io
ns

 fo
r e

ac
h 

To
w

n 
fa

ci
lit

y:

V
E

R
T

IC
A

L 
FA

C
IL

IT
IE

S

p
la

n 
re

q
ui

re
m

en
t 

2:
  

m
et

ho
d

s 
to

 re
m

ov
e 

b
a

rr
ie

rs
Ch

ec
kl

is
t 

Ite
m

Fa
ilu

re
 D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Re

co
m

m
en

d 
Re

m
ov

al

1.
2 

- 1
.5

, 
1.

9 
& 

1.
10

La
ck

 o
f a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
pa

rk
in

g.
Se

e 
N

ot
e 

#1

2.
31

Do
or

 s
ig

ns
 n

ot
 m

ou
nt

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

48
" a

nd
 6

0"
 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
flo

or
.

*A
dj

us
t s

ig
ns

 to
 b

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
48

" a
nd

 6
0"

 fr
om

 
flo

or
.

3.
2

N
o 

si
gn

s 
at

 in
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
ile

ts
 d

ire
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 to

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

to
ile

ts
.

Ad
d 

Si
gn

s 
di

re
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
ba

th
ro

om
.

3.
11

M
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
at

hr
oo

m
 d

oo
rs

 
re

qu
ire

 e
xc

es
si

ve
 fo

rc
e 

to
 o

pe
n.

Ad
ju

st
 c

lo
se

r o
r r

ep
la

ce
 d

oo
r s

o 
fo

rc
e 

ne
ed

ed
 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

5 
lb

s.

3.
20

Ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 s

ta
lls

’ c
oa

t h
oo

ks
 s

et
 to

o 
hi

gh
.

Ad
ju

st
 h

oo
ks

 b
et

w
ee

n 
25

" a
nd

 4
8"

 o
n 

st
al

l.

Ta
bl

e 
7:

 T
ow

n 
H

al
l/P

ol
ic

e 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t B
ar

rie
rs

*I
te

m
 d

oe
s 

no
t n

ee
d 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

if 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
w

as
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
03

/1
5/

20
12

, a
s 

pa
ra

m
et

er
 w

as
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

19
91

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
.

60



15
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

N
ot

e 
#1

: T
he

 T
ow

n 
H

al
l/P

ol
ic

e 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t c
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

as
 s

ev
er

al
 s

po
ts

 
de

di
ca

te
d 

as
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

on
ly

 o
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

sp
ot

s 
al

lo
w

s 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 a
cc

es
s 

in
to

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
 T

he
 p

ar
al

le
l p

ar
ki

ng
 

sp
ac

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
s 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 a

t 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g’
s 

fr
on

t 
le

ad
s 

di
re

ct
ly

 
in

to
 a

 ra
is

ed
 c

ur
b,

 w
ith

 n
o 

ac
ce

ss
 a

is
le

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 th

e 
ne

ar
es

t c
ur

b 
ra

m
p,

 
w

hi
ch

 it
se

lf 
is

 n
ot

 c
om

pl
ia

nt
 w

ith
 c

on
te

m
po

ra
ry

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. A

dd
iti

on
al

ly,
 

th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

sp
ac

es
 a

t t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g’
s 

re
ar

 le
ad

s 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

 
an

 o
ffi

ce
r o

nl
y 

en
tra

nc
e 

(s
ee

 F
ig

ur
e 

11
).

Th
e 

To
w

n 
H

al
l b

ui
ld

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

2 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ot
s 

w
ith

 o
ne

 b
ei

ng
 a

 v
an

-a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

sp
ot

. D
ue

 to
 th

e 
to

po
gr

ap
hy

 o
f 

th
e 

si
te

, a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 th

es
e 

tw
o 

sp
ac

es
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
ch

al
le

ng
e.

 It
 is

 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

To
w

n 
re

st
rip

e 
th

e 
so

ut
he

rn
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

ta
ll 

at
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g’
s 

re
ar

 to
 le

ad
 to

 th
e 

lo
w

er
 p

ub
lic

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
w

he
re

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 s

ta
ll 

cu
rr

en
tly

 le
ad

s.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly,
 it

 is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

To
w

n 
re

de
si

gn
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t p
ar

al
le

l p
ar

ki
ng

 s
ta

ll 
at

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
en

tra
nc

e 
to

 
be

 c
om

pl
ia

nt
 w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

.

p
la

n 
re

q
ui

re
m

en
t 

2:
  

m
et

ho
d

s 
to

 re
m

ov
e 

b
a

rr
ie

rs

Fi
gu

re
 1

1:
 O

ffi
ce

 E
nt

ra
nc

e

61



16AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Ch
ec

kl
is

t I
te

m
Fa

ilu
re

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Re
co

m
m

en
d 

Re
m

ov
al

2.
45

Do
or

s 
to

 b
ui

ld
in

g'
s 

pu
bl

ic
 e

nt
ra

nc
e 

re
qu

ire
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 fo
rc

e 
to

 o
pe

n.
Ad

ju
st

 c
lo

se
r o

r r
ep

la
ce

 d
oo

r s
o 

fo
rc

e 
ne

ed
ed

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ex

ce
ed

 5
 lb

s.

3.
11

M
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
at

hr
oo

m
 d

oo
rs

 re
qu

ire
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 
fo

rc
e 

to
 o

pe
n.

Ad
ju

st
 c

lo
se

r o
r r

ep
la

ce
 d

oo
r s

o 
fo

rc
e 

ne
ed

ed
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

ex
ce

ed
 5

 lb
s.

3.
20

Ba
th

ro
om

 c
oa

t h
oo

ks
 s

et
 to

o 
hi

gh
.

Ad
ju

st
 h

oo
ks

 b
et

w
ee

n 
25

" a
nd

 4
8"

 o
n 

st
al

l.

3.
23

M
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ba

th
ro

om
 s

in
ks

 a
re

 in
st

al
le

d 
at

 a
n 

in
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 
he

ig
ht

. 
Re

in
st

al
l s

in
ks

 s
o 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 3

4"
 a

bo
ve

 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

.

3.
32

M
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
to

ile
ts

 a
re

 in
st

al
le

d 
at

 a
n 

in
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 h
ei

gh
t. 

Ad
ju

st
 to

ile
t h

ei
gh

t s
o 

th
at

 it
 is

 b
et

w
ee

n 
17

" &
 1

9"
 fr

om
 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
.

3.
44

Ad
eq

ua
te

 d
oo

r p
ul

ls
 n

ot
 p

re
se

nt
 o

n 
bo

th
 s

id
es

 o
f m

al
e/

fe
m

al
e 

st
al

l d
oo

rs
.

*R
ep

la
ce

 d
oo

r h
an

dl
es

 a
nd

 h
ar

dw
ar

e.

4.
60

W
at

er
 fo

un
ta

in
 s

po
ut

 is
 to

o 
hi

gh
 fo

r a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

us
e.

Ad
ju

st
 w

at
er

 fo
un

ta
in

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

sp
ou

t o
ut

le
t i

s 
no

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 3
6"

 fr
om

 g
ro

un
d.

Ta
bl

e 
8:

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t B

ar
rie

rs

*I
te

m
 d

oe
s 

no
t n

ee
d 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

if 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
w

as
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
03

/1
5/

20
12

, a
s 

pa
ra

m
et

er
 w

as
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

19
91

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
.

62



17
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Ch
ec

kl
is

t I
te

m
Fa

ilu
re

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Re
co

m
m

en
d 

Re
m

ov
al

1.
5

N
or

th
ea

st
er

n 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 s
pa

ce
 d

id
 n

ot
 m

ee
t t

he
 d

im
en

si
on

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 v
an

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

sp
ac

es
.

Re
st

rip
e 

th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

lin
es

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

n 
11

' s
pa

ce
 w

ith
 a

 
5'

 a
is

le
 o

r c
on

si
de

r s
tr

ip
in

g 
lo

t n
ex

t t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 

lo
t. 

Ad
d 

si
gn

ag
e.

3.
12

Cl
os

er
 fo

r m
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ba

th
ro

om
s 

cl
os

es
 to

o 
qu

ic
kl

y 
an

d 
is

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

. 
Ad

ju
st

 c
lo

se
r s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
do

or
s 

ta
ke

 a
t l

ea
st

 5
 s

ec
on

ds
 to

 
cl

os
e 

fr
om

 a
 9

0-
de

gr
ee

 a
ng

le
.

3.
26

Pi
pe

s 
be

lo
w

 m
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
si

nk
s 

ar
e 

no
t i

ns
ul

at
ed

 o
r 

pr
ot

ec
te

d.
In

st
al

l i
ns

ul
at

io
n 

or
 a

 c
ov

er
 p

an
el

.

3.
34

Re
ar

 g
ra

b 
ba

r i
n 

m
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ba

th
ro

om
s 

is
 n

ot
 3

6"
 lo

ng
.

*I
ns

ta
ll 

36
" r

ea
r g

ra
b 

ba
r a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly.

4.
9

W
at

er
 fo

un
ta

in
 p

ro
tr

ud
es

 in
to

 c
irc

ul
at

io
n 

pa
th

 a
t a

n 
un

sa
fe

 
he

ig
ht

. 
Ad

d 
a 

ta
ct

ile
 w

ar
ni

ng
 s

uc
h 

as
 p

er
m

an
en

t p
la

nt
er

 o
r 

pa
rt

ia
l w

al
l t

o 
sc

re
en

 fo
un

ta
in

.

4.
20

Fi
re

 a
la

rm
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 s

tro
be

 li
gh

ts
.

Re
pl

ac
e 

fix
tu

re
.

4.
60

W
at

er
 fo

un
ta

in
 s

po
ut

 is
 to

o 
hi

gh
 fo

r a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

us
e.

Ad
ju

st
 w

at
er

 fo
un

ta
in

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

sp
ou

t o
ut

le
t i

s 
no

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 3
6"

 fr
om

 g
ro

un
d.

Ta
bl

e 
9:

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t B

ar
rie

rs
 

*I
te

m
 d

oe
s 

no
t n

ee
d 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

if 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
w

as
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
03

/1
5/

20
12

, a
s 

pa
ra

m
et

er
 w

as
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

19
91

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
.

63



18AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Ch
ec

kl
is

t I
te

m
Fa

ilu
re

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Re
co

m
m

en
d 

Re
m

ov
al

1.
3

N
o 

va
n-

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 s

pa
ce

 lo
ca

te
d 

at
 th

e 
pl

an
t.

Re
co

nfi
gu

re
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 v
an

-a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

sp
ac

e.
 A

dd
 

si
gn

ag
e.

 (S
ee

 N
ot

e 
#2

)

1.
9

N
o 

cu
rb

 ra
m

p 
ac

ce
ss

 fr
om

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
t t

o 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g.
In

st
al

l c
ur

b 
ra

m
p 

in
to

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
 (S

ee
 N

ot
e 

#2
)

(V
ar

io
us

)
N

o 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
at

hr
oo

m
s 

ex
is

t o
n 

th
e 

fir
st

 fl
oo

r. 
Se

co
nd

 
flo

or
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
on

ly
 b

y 
st

ai
rs

.
Se

e 
N

ot
e 

#2

Ta
bl

e 
10

: W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
 B

ar
rie

rs
 

N
ot

e 
#2

: 
As

 m
en

tio
ne

d 
ab

ov
e,

 t
he

 W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t 
Pl

an
t 

is
 o

nl
y 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 o
nc

e 
a 

ye
ar

 v
ia

 t
he

 C
iti

ze
n’s

 
Ac

ad
em

y.
 A

s 
su

ch
, t

he
 fa

ci
lit

y 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
ta

in
 m

an
y 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 
to

 p
ub

lic
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 t

he
 t

ou
r 

pa
th

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ac

ad
em

y 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ou
ld

 u
til

iz
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 la
rg

es
t 

ba
rr

ie
r 

to
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 T

re
at

m
en

t 
Pl

an
t 

is
 t

he
 l

ac
k 

of
 a

n 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 b
at

hr
oo

m
 o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 le
ve

l o
f 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g.

 D
ue

 
to

 t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

co
st

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 

gr
ou

nd
 le

ve
l b

at
hr

oo
m

, i
t 

is
 n

ot
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 T
ow

n 
pu

rs
ue

 th
is

 o
pt

io
n 

fo
r b

ar
rie

r r
em

ov
al

. 

In
st

ea
d,

 i
t 

is
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 W
at

er
 S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t 
co

nd
uc

t t
he

 to
ur

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y 

vi
a 

a 
na

rra
te

d 
an

d 
fil

m
ed

 
w

al
kt

hr
ou

gh
 o

f 
th

e 
to

ur
 li

m
its

. 
Du

rin
g 

th
e 

Ci
tiz

en
’s 

Ac
ad

em
y 

ro
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

, i
t i

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 
th

e 
ac

ad
em

y 
be

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 to

 m
ee

t a
t a

 c
om

m
on

 a
re

a,
 p

er
ha

ps
 

To
w

n 
H

al
l, a

nd
 w

at
ch

 th
e 

fil
m

ed
 w

al
kt

hr
ou

gh
 o

f t
he

 fa
ci

lit
y.

 T
he

 
W

at
er

 S
up

er
in

te
nd

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
al

so
 b

e 
pr

es
en

t a
t t

ha
t a

ca
de

m
y 

m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

he
lp

 a
ns

w
er

 a
ny

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 th

at
 m

ay
 a

ris
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
fil

m
. T

hi
s 

in
 tu

rn
 w

ou
ld

 li
m

it 
al

l p
ub

lic
 in

te
ra

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

 a
nd

 re
m

ov
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 m

ak
e 

a 
co

st
ly

 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y.

64



19
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Ch
ec

kl
is

t 
Ite

m
Fa

ilu
re

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

Re
co

m
m

en
d 

Re
m

ov
al

P1
 &

 P
2

Sw
in

gs
 d

o 
no

t c
on

ta
in

 a
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 ro

ut
e.

Co
ns

tr
uc

t a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

ro
ut

e.

P2
0

Ci
rc

ul
ar

 h
an

dr
ai

l s
ur

fa
ce

 
ex

ce
ed

s 
gr

ip
 d

ia
m

et
er

.
Re

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 0

.9
4"

 to
 

1.
55

" d
ia

m
et

er
 ra

ils
.

1.
4 

- 1
.1

1
N

or
th

er
n 

lo
t a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

rr
ie

rs
Se

e 
N

ot
e 

#3

1.
27

Ra
m

p 
ru

nn
in

g 
sl

op
e 

is
 to

o 
st

ee
p.

Se
e 

N
ot

e 
#4

Ta
bl

e 
11

: L
ak

e 
Lo

ui
se

 P
ar

k 
Ba

rr
ie

rs
N

ot
e 

#3
: T

he
 L

ak
e 

Lo
ui

se
 P

ar
k 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
t c

on
ta

in
s 

a 
m

ul
tit

ud
e 

of
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

ba
rr

ie
rs

. T
he

 t
hr

ee
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 
in

 t
he

 n
or

th
er

n 
lo

t 
al

l l
ac

k 
pr

op
er

 s
tr

ip
in

g,
 d

im
en

si
on

in
g,

 a
nd

 
si

gn
ag

e.
 M

or
eo

ve
r, 

th
e 

sl
op

e 
of

 th
e 

lo
t e

xc
ee

ds
 th

e 
al

lo
w

ab
le

 
sl

op
e 

lim
it 

fo
r p

ro
pe

r n
av

ig
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

le
ad

s 
di

re
ct

ly
 

to
 a

 ra
is

ed
 o

bs
tr

uc
tio

n.
 It

 is
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

To
w

n 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 a
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

gr
ad

in
g,

 re
st

rip
in

g,
 a

nd
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

pl
an

ni
ng

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

lo
t t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e.
 

N
ot

e 
#4

: F
ie

ld
 s

ur
ve

y 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 th
e 

ru
nn

in
g 

sl
op

e 
of

 th
e 

ra
m

p 
lo

ca
te

d 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 th
e 

no
rt

he
rn

 p
ar

ki
ng

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 
sl

op
e.

 A
s 

su
ch

, i
t i

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 th
is

 ra
m

p 
be

 re
tro

fit
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
sl

op
e 

of
 1

:1
2.

 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly,

 fi
el

d 
st

af
f f

ou
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

ra
m

p 
w

as
 

ob
st

ru
ct

ed
 m

id
w

ay
 d

ow
n 

th
e 

ra
m

p 
w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
t (

se
e 

Fi
gu

re
 1

2)
.

Fi
gu

re
 1

2:
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 R
am

p 
O

bs
tr

uc
tio

n

65



20AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 N

E
T

W
O

R
K

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S

St
af

f i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

m
et

ho
ds

 fo
r t

he
 b

ar
rie

rs
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

N
et

w
or

k:

Fa
ile

d 
Fa

ci
lit

y
Fa

ilu
re

 
Co

un
t

Ba
rr

ie
r R

em
ov

al

Cu
rb

 ra
m

p 
di

re
ct

io
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 le
ad

 to
 c

ro
ss

in
g

13
Re

al
ig

n 
Cr

os
sw

al
k 

M
ar

ki
ng

s/
Re

co
ns

tr
uc

t R
am

p

Un
ev

en
 L

an
di

ng
70

Sa
w

cu
t

Le
ss

 th
an

 4
-F

oo
t w

id
th

21
Re

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

G
re

at
er

 th
an

 8
.3

%
 ru

nn
in

g 
sl

op
e

10
Re

pl
ac

e/
Le

ve
l R

am
p

M
or

e 
th

an
 2

%
 c

ro
ss

 s
lo

pe
16

Re
pl

ac
e/

Le
ve

l R
am

p

N
o 

2-
fo

ot
 s

id
e 

de
te

ct
ab

le
 w

ar
ni

ng
 d

om
es

 o
r o

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls
50

Ad
d 

do
m

es

N
o 

4 
x 

4 
le

ve
l a

t t
op

 o
f c

ur
b 

ra
m

p
19

Ad
d/

Re
pl

ac
e 

4x
4

4 
x 

4 
la

nd
in

g 
no

t l
ev

el
16

Le
ve

l L
an

di
ng

Cu
rb

 ra
m

p 
fla

re
s 

ex
ce

ed
 m

ax
 s

lo
pe

10
Re

pl
ac

e 
Fl

ar
es

Ph
ys

ic
al

 o
bs

tr
uc

tio
ns

5
Re

m
ov

e 
O

bs
tr

uc
tio

n

Ta
bl

e 
12

: F
ai

le
d 

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
N

et
w

or
k 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s

66



21
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

It 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

no
te

 th
at

 m
ul

tip
le

 re
m

ed
ia

l e
ff

or
ts

 a
re

 c
on

so
lid

at
ed

 w
he

n 
re

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

is
 c

on
du

ct
ed

. 

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
, t

he
 s

ur
ve

yo
r n

ot
ed

 th
at

 s
ev

er
al

 a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 s
id

ew
al

ks
 o

n 
M

er
rim

on
 A

ve
nu

e 
in

 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

ite
m

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
ch

ai
rs

, t
ab

le
s,

 a
nd

 s
ig

ns
, t

ha
t c

ou
ld

 b
e 

an
 im

pe
di

m
en

t t
o 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 d
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
us

e 
an

d 
ex

ac
t l

oc
at

io
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

ite
m

s.
 T

ow
n 

or
di

na
nc

es
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 s

id
ew

al
ks

 a
nd

 c
od

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t a
re

 a
de

qu
at

e 
to

 k
ee

p 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
si

de
w

al
ks

 in
 th

e 
To

w
n 

AD
A 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 u

p 
to

 a
 m

in
im

um
 w

id
th

 o
f 4

8 
in

ch
es

. T
he

 T
ow

n 
co

ul
d 

al
so

 c
on

si
de

r a
do

pt
in

g 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 o

f t
he

 A
DA

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

ar
ea

 o
f t

ho
se

 s
id

ew
al

ks
 s

o 
th

at
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
co

ul
d 

be
 m

or
e 

ea
si

ly
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d.
 

67



22

W
ith

 a
n 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 T
ow

n 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 a

nd
 a

 s
tra

te
gy

 to
 re

m
ov

e 
th

em
, t

he
 n

ex
t s

te
p 

in
 th

is
 p

la
n 

is
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

sc
he

du
le

 o
f r

em
ed

ia
tio

n.
 O

f 
co

ur
se

, r
em

ed
ia

tio
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 h
ap

pe
n 

in
 a

 v
ac

uu
m

 a
nd

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
To

w
n 

bu
dg

et
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y.

 W
ith

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
 fi

na
nc

ia
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
CO

VI
D-

19
 o

ut
br

ea
k,

 it
 w

ill
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 e
st

im
at

e 
pr

oj
ec

t c
os

ts
 a

nd
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
. T

ow
n 

of
 W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
st

af
f 

or
ch

es
tra

tin
g 

th
es

e 
re

m
ed

ia
l e

ff
or

ts
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

lo
se

ly
 tr

ac
k 

th
e 

co
st

s 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

t b
ud

ge
ts

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

efi
ne

 e
st

im
at

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
ea

ch
 fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r. 
Fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 a

 s
ch

ed
ul

e,
 re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
co

st
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ge
ne

ra
liz

ed
 in

to
 fi

ve
 b

ro
ad

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s:

p
la

n 
re

q
ui

re
m

en
t 

3:
  

sp
ec

ify
 a

 s
ch

ed
ul

e

  »
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
ds

 ($
) –

 O
bs

tr
uc

tio
n 

re
m

ov
al

 re
qu

iri
ng

 th
es

e 
fu

nd
s 

is
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 d

on
e 

qu
ic

kl
y 

an
d 

ut
ili

ze
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
ta

ff
 fo

r l
ab

or
. G

en
er

al
ly,

 
th

es
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 c
an

 u
til

iz
e 

th
e 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

’s 
ex

is
tin

g 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 b

ud
ge

t, 
as

 t
he

se
 fi

xe
s 

ar
e 

lo
w

 c
os

t. 
Ex

am
pl

es
 o

f 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
ef

fo
rt

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
ad

ju
st

in
g 

do
or

 p
ul

ls
, i

ns
ul

at
io

n 
of

 p
ip

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
ad

di
tio

n 
of

 A
DA

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
ig

ns
.

Ca
te

go
ry

Es
tim

at
ed

 C
os

t
Fu

nd
in

g 
De

sc
rip

tio
n

"$
"

 $
0 

- $
99

9 
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
ds

 

"$
"

 $
0 

- $
99

9 
Ci

tiz
en

 R
eq

ue
st

s 
Fu

nd
s

"$
$"

 $
1,

00
0 

- $
4,

99
9 

 A
DA

 R
em

ed
ia

l F
un

ds

"$
$$

"
 $

5,
00

0 
- $

9,
99

9 
 A

DA
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 P
la

n 
Sp

ec
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 

"$
$$

$"
 $

10
,0

00
 a

nd
 U

p 
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Ca

nd
id

at
es

 

Ta
bl

e 
13

: B
ud

ge
t C

at
eg

or
ie

s

68



23
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

p
la

n 
re

q
ui

re
m

en
t 

3:
  

sp
ec

ify
 a

 s
ch

ed
ul

e

  »
Ci

tiz
en

 R
eq

ue
st

 F
un

ds
 (

$)
 –

 W
hi

le
 n

ot
 d

ire
ct

ly
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

ba
rr

ie
rs

, t
he

se
 f

un
ds

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

se
t a

si
de

 o
n 

a 
ye

ar
ly

-b
as

is
 u

po
n 

pl
an

 a
pp

ro
va

l. 
Th

e 
in

te
nt

 o
f t

hi
s 

bu
dg

et
 is

 to
 h

av
e 

a 
sm

al
l p

or
tio

n 
of

 m
on

ey
 s

et
 a

si
de

 b
y 

th
e 

m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 t
ha

t 
ca

n 
be

 u
se

d 
as

 n
ew

 b
ar

rie
rs

 t
o 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 a
re

 id
en

tifi
ed

 b
y 

W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

ci
tiz

en
s 

vi
a 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 P
ol

ic
y.

 T
he

 T
ow

n’s
 A

DA
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 c
ha

rg
e 

of
 u

si
ng

 
th

is
 b

ud
ge

t t
o 

ad
dr

es
s 

an
y 

em
er

ge
nt

 b
ar

rie
rs

 a
s 

th
ey

 s
ee

 fi
t.

  »
A

DA
 R

em
ed

ia
l F

un
ds

 ($
$)

 –
 T

he
se

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 m
or

e 
tim

e 
an

d 
m

on
ey

 th
an

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 
ca

te
go

ry
, a

nd
 h

av
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

ut
ili

ze
 p

riv
at

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
or

 s
pe

ci
al

 m
at

er
ia

ls
. F

un
di

ng
 fo

r t
he

se
 b

ar
rie

rs
 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r a

t l
ea

st
 a

 y
ea

r i
n 

ad
va

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
w

or
k.

 P
la

nn
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
fo

r t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

fis
ca

l 
ye

ar
 c

an
 b

e 
ite

m
iz

ed
 in

 t
he

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d.
 E

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f 

su
ch

 r
em

ed
ia

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

si
gn

al
s,

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t r

e-
st

rip
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
ra

m
ps

.

  »
A

DA
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 P
la

n 
Sp

ec
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 ($
$$

) –
 S

pe
ci

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

so
m

e 
de

gr
ee

 o
f s

pe
ci

al
iz

ed
 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 o

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
or

e 
ex

pe
ns

iv
e 

th
an

 t
he

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f 
ba

rr
ie

r 
re

m
ov

al
. T

he
se

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ill
 m

os
t 

lik
el

y 
re

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 t

he
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 s
ta

ff
 t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
un

iq
ue

 
gr

an
t o

r f
un

di
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fr

om
 e

xt
er

na
l s

ou
rc

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t b

ud
ge

t t
o 

re
m

ov
e 

th
es

e 
ba

rr
ie

rs
. E

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f w

or
k 

re
qu

iri
ng

 s
pe

ci
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 b
at

hr
oo

m
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

or
 

co
ns

tr
uc

tin
g 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 p

la
yg

ro
un

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t.

  »
Ca

pi
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 C

an
di

da
te

s 
($

$$
$)

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 f
al

l i
nt

o 
th

is
 c

at
eg

or
y 

w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 lo
ng

-ra
ng

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
, c

on
su

lti
ng

 e
ff

or
ts

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
al

iz
ed

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 r

em
ov

e 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 b

ar
rie

rs
 t

he
y 

ad
dr

es
s.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
se

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
pe

rf
ec

t c
an

di
da

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 m

un
ic

ip
al

ity
’s 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
la

n.
 

Re
m

ed
ia

l e
ff

or
ts

 in
 t

hi
s 

ca
te

go
ry

 c
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 la

rg
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

of
 g

ra
di

ng
 a

nd
 p

av
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

.

Ad
di

tio
na

lly
, t

he
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
fa

ci
lit

y 
su

rv
ey

 id
en

tifi
ed

 9
4 

fa
ile

d 
cu

rb
 r

am
p 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

To
w

n.
 T

he
 

sc
he

du
le

 w
ill

 a
ss

um
e 

th
at

, u
til

iz
in

g 
th

e 
AD

A 
Tr

an
si

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 e

ac
h 

fis
ca

l y
ea

r, t
he

 9
4 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
m

ed
ia

te
d 

ov
er

 t
he

 c
ou

rs
e 

of
 t

he
 n

ex
t 

fiv
e 

ye
ar

s 
at

 a
bo

ut
 1

9 
fa

ci
lit

y 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

ns
 p

er
 y

ea
r. 

Th
e 

AD
A 

Co
or

di
na

to
r m

us
t w

or
k 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 T
ow

n 
st

af
f i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

tim
el

in
e 

an
d 

bu
dg

et
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 re

la
te

d 
to

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

fa
ci

lit
y 

w
or

k 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

va
rie

d 
na

tu
re

 o
f r

ep
ai

rs
 a

nd
 fu

nd
in

g 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y.

69



24AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Ta
bl

e 
14

: A
DA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n 

Sc
he

du
le

FY
 2

02
1

To
w

n 
H

al
l

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

 
 

3.
2 

 $
  

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 F
un

d 
 

 
Ad

d 
Si

gn
s 

di
re

ct
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 to
w

ar
ds

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

ba
th

ro
om

.

 
 

3.
11

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
 

Ad
ju

st
 c

lo
se

r o
r r

ep
la

ce
 d

oo
r s

o 
fo

rc
e 

ne
ed

ed
 d

oe
s 

no
t e

xc
ee

d 
5 

lb
s.

W
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
 

   
   

  V
ar

io
us

 
 $

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
Fi

lm
 n

ar
ra

te
d 

to
ur

 o
f f

ac
ili

ty
 to

 p
re

se
nt

 to
 C

iti
ze

n’s
 A

ca
de

m
y.

 C
ea

se
 c

on
du

ct
in

g 
to

ur
s.

Ro
ad

 N
et

w
or

k
 

   
   

   
An

nu
al

 
 $

$$
  

AD
A 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
Pl

an
  

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
pr

io
rit

y:
 C

en
tra

l a
nd

 N
or

th
er

n 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 

 
 

 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 

Ci
tiz

en
 R

eq
ue

st
s

 
Pe

r R
eq

ue
st

 
 $

 
Ci

tiz
en

 R
eq

ue
st

 F
un

d 
 

Sp
ot

 fi
xe

s 
as

 th
ey

 a
ris

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
G

rie
va

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
. 

 
 

 

 
 

2.
45

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
 

Ad
ju

st
 c

lo
se

r o
r r

ep
la

ce
 d

oo
r s

o 
fo

rc
e 

ne
ed

ed
 d

oe
s 

no
t e

xc
ee

d 
5 

lb
s.

 
 

3.
11

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
 

Ad
ju

st
 c

lo
se

r o
r r

ep
la

ce
 d

oo
r s

o 
fo

rc
e 

ne
ed

ed
 d

oe
s 

no
t e

xc
ee

d 
5 

lb
s.

 
 

3.
44

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
 

*R
ep

la
ce

 d
oo

r h
an

dl
es

 a
nd

 h
ar

dw
ar

e.

 
 

3.
12

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
 

Ad
ju

st
 c

lo
se

r s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

do
or

s 
ta

ke
 a

t l
ea

st
 5

 s
ec

on
ds

 to
 c

lo
se

 fr
om

 a
 9

0-
de

gr
ee

 a
ng

le
.

 
 

4.
20

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
 

Re
pl

ac
e 

fir
e 

al
ar

m
 fi

xt
ur

e 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

st
ro

be
 li

gh
ts

.

70



25
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

Ta
bl

e 
14

: A
DA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n 

Sc
he

du
le

FY
 2

02
2

To
w

n 
H

al
l

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

 
 

3.
20

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
Ad

ju
st

 s
ta

ll 
ho

ok
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

25
” a

nd
 4

8”
 fo

r m
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ba

th
ro

om
s.

La
ke

 L
ou

is
e 

Pa
rk

 
   

   
 P

1 
& 

P2
 

 $
$ 

 
AD

A 
Re

m
ed

ia
l F

un
ds

 C
on

st
ru

ct
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
ro

ut
e 

to
 s

w
in

g 
se

t f
ac

ili
ty

.

Ro
ad

 N
et

w
or

k
 

   
   

   
An

nu
al

 
 $

$$
  

AD
A 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
Pl

an
  

Lo
ca

tio
n 

pr
io

rit
y:

 C
en

tra
l a

nd
 N

or
th

er
n 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 
 

 
 

 
Sp

ec
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 
Ci

tiz
en

 R
eq

ue
st

s
 

Pe
r R

eq
ue

st
 

$ 
Ci

tiz
en

 R
eq

ue
st

 F
un

d 
Sp

ot
 fi

xe
s 

as
 th

ey
 a

ris
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 
 

 
 

 

 
 

3.
20

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
Ad

ju
st

 s
ta

ll 
ho

ok
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

25
” a

nd
 4

8”
 fo

r m
al

e/
fe

m
al

e 
ba

th
ro

om
s.

 
 

4.
60

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
Ad

ju
st

 w
at

er
 fo

un
ta

in
 s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
sp

ou
t o

ut
le

t i
s 

no
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
36

” f
ro

m
 g

ro
un

d.

 
 

3.
23

 
$$

 
AD

A 
Re

m
ed

ia
l F

un
ds

 R
ei

ns
ta

ll 
m

al
e/

fe
m

al
e 

si
nk

s 
so

 th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 3

4”
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
.

 
 

3.
26

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
In

st
al

l i
ns

ul
at

io
n 

or
 a

 c
ov

er
 p

an
el

 u
nd

er
 m

al
e/

fe
m

al
e 

si
nk

s.

 
 

3.
34

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
*I

ns
ta

ll 
36

” r
ea

r g
ra

b 
ba

r a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
.

 
 

4.
9 

 $
  

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 F
un

d 
 

Ad
d 

a 
ta

ct
ile

 w
ar

ni
ng

 s
uc

h 
as

 p
er

m
an

en
t p

la
nt

er
 o

r p
ar

tia
l w

al
l t

o 
sc

re
en

 w
at

er
 fo

un
ta

in
.

71



26AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Ta
bl

e 
14

: A
DA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n 

Sc
he

du
le

FY
 2

02
3

To
w

n 
H

al
l

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

 
 

2.
31

 
 $

  
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 F

un
d 

 
 

*A
dj

us
t s

ig
ns

 to
 b

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
48

” a
nd

 6
0”

 fr
om

 fl
oo

r.

 
 

3.
20

 
 $

$$
  

 A
DA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n 

  
Pa

ra
lle

l p
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 re
st

rip
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t.
 

 
 

 
 S

pe
ci

al
 F

un
di

ng
 

La
ke

 L
ou

is
e 

Pa
rk

 
 

P2
0 

 $
$ 

 
AD

A 
Re

m
ed

ia
l F

un
ds

  
Re

pl
ac

e 
ac

ce
ss

 h
an

dr
ai

ls
 to

 v
er

tic
al

 p
la

y 
fa

ci
lit

y 
w

ith
 .0

94
” t

o 
1.

55
” d

ia
m

et
er

 ra
ils

.

Ro
ad

 N
et

w
or

k
 

 A
nn

ua
l 

 $
$$

  
AD

A 
Tr

an
si

tio
n 

Pl
an

  
 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

pr
io

rit
y:

 N
or

th
er

n 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 &

 W
ea

ve
r B

ou
le

va
rd

 
 

 
 

 
Sp

ec
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 
Ci

tiz
en

 R
eq

ue
st

s
 

Pe
r R

eq
ue

st
 

$ 
Ci

tiz
en

 R
eq

ue
st

 F
un

d 
 

Sp
ot

 fi
xe

s 
as

 th
ey

 a
ris

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
G

rie
va

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
. 

 
 

 

 
 

3.
32

 
 $

$ 
 

 A
DA

 R
em

ed
ia

l F
un

ds
   

Ad
ju

st
 to

ile
t h

ei
gh

ts
 s

o 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 b

et
w

ee
n 

17
” &

 1
9”

 fr
om

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
.

Ta
bl

e 
14

: A
DA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n 

Sc
he

du
le

FY
 2

02
4

La
ke

 L
ou

is
e 

Pa
rk

 
   

   
   

An
nu

al
 

 $
$$

  
AD

A 
Tr

an
si

tio
n 

Pl
an

  
 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

RF
P 

fo
r P

ar
ki

ng
 G

ra
di

ng
/R

es
tr

ip
in

g 
Pr

oj
ec

t. 
 

 
 

 
Sp

ec
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 

Ro
ad

 N
et

w
or

k
 

   
   

   
An

nu
al

 
 $

$$
  

AD
A 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
Pl

an
  

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
pr

io
rit

y:
 C

hu
rc

h 
St

re
et

, A
la

ba
m

a 
Av

en
ue

, &
 C

ol
le

ge
 S

tre
et

 
 

 
 

 
Sp

ec
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 
Ci

tiz
en

 R
eq

ue
st

s
 

Pe
r R

eq
ue

st
 

$ 
Ci

tiz
en

 R
eq

ue
st

 F
un

d 
 

Sp
ot

 fi
xe

s 
as

 th
ey

 a
ris

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
G

rie
va

nc
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
. 

 
 

 

72



27
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

Ta
bl

e 
14

: A
DA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n 

Sc
he

du
le

FY
 2

02
4

La
ke

 L
ou

is
e 

Pa
rk

 
 A

nn
ua

l 
 $

$$
  

AD
A 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
Pl

an
  

 
Re

co
nfi

gu
re

 ra
m

p 
sl

op
e 

to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r 1

:1
2 

m
ax

im
um

 ru
nn

in
g 

sl
op

e.
 

 
 

 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 

Ro
ad

 N
et

w
or

k
 

 A
nn

ua
l 

 $
$$

  
AD

A 
Tr

an
si

tio
n 

Pl
an

  
 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

pr
io

rit
y:

 R
em

ai
ni

ng
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 

 
 

 
 

Sp
ec

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 

Ci
tiz

en
 R

eq
ue

st
s

 
Pe

r R
eq

ue
st

 
$ 

Ci
tiz

en
 R

eq
ue

st
 F

un
d 

 
Sp

ot
 fi

xe
s 

as
 th

ey
 a

ris
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

G
rie

va
nc

e 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 
 

 
 

*I
te

m
 d

oe
s 

no
t n

ee
d 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

if 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
w

as
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
03

/1
5/

20
12

, a
s 

pa
ra

m
et

er
 w

as
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

19
91

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
.

Pr
oj

ec
t p

rio
rit

ie
s 

m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

as
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 b
ud

ge
ts

 s
hi

ft
, o

r a
s 

ne
w

 c
iti

ze
n 

re
qu

es
ts

 e
m

er
ge

. T
he

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
ab

ov
e 

is
 m

ea
nt

 o
nl

y 
to

 s
er

ve
 a

s 
a 

gu
id

el
in

e 
fo

r s
ta

ff
 to

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
w

he
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
sy

st
em

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. A
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
ov

er
 th

e 
ye

ar
s,

 it
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

AD
A 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t f
un

ds
 w

ill
 s

hi
ft

 fr
om

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
po

t fi
xe

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 fu

nd
in

g 
ci

tiz
en

 re
qu

es
ts

. A
dd

iti
on

al
 ro

ut
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

id
en

tifi
ed

 
by

 s
ta

ff
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 a

s 
w

el
l, 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r o

n 
th

e 
Ca

pi
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
an

d 
ad

de
d 

to
 th

is
 s

ch
ed

ul
e.

73



28

Th
e 

AD
A 

Tr
an

si
tio

n 
Pl

an
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

th
e 

id
en

tifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 w
ith

 t
he

 m
un

ic
ip

al
ity

 w
ho

 w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 s

ai
d 

pl
an

. T
hi

s 
in

di
vi

du
al

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r:   »

Co
or

di
na

tin
g 

ba
rr

ie
r r

em
ov

al
 p

er
 th

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 s

ch
ed

ul
e.

  »
W

or
ki

ng
 to

 g
et

 la
rg

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 ro
ut

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

on
to

 th
e 

Ca
pi

ta
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

  »
Im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
a 

gr
ie

va
nc

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

th
at

 a
llo

w
s 

ci
tiz

en
s 

to
 re

qu
es

t b
ar

rie
r r

em
ov

al
.

  »
Cr

ea
tin

g 
an

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

ha
nd

le
 c

iti
ze

n 
re

qu
es

ts
.

  »
Co

nd
uc

tin
g 

st
af

f/
vo

lu
nt

ee
r t

ra
in

in
g 

on
 A

DA
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e.

  »
Id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 c
on

ta
ct

 p
ot

en
tia

l p
ar

tn
er

 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
.

  »
Im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
fu

tu
re

 s
te

ps
 a

s 
id

en
tifi

ed
 a

nd
 li

st
ed

 in
 

do
cu

m
en

t.

  »
Co

nd
uc

tin
g 

se
lf-

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 li
st

ed
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
.

p
la

n 
re

q
ui

re
m

en
t 

4:
  

id
en

ti
fy

 a
n 

A
D

A
 C

oo
rd

in
a

to
r

J
E

N
N

IF
E

R
 J

A
C

K
S

O
N

30
 S

o
ut

h 
M

a
in

 S
tr

ee
t

(8
28

) 6
45

-7
11

6
co

m
p

lia
nc

e@
w

ea
ve

rv
ill

en
c.

o
rg

jja
ck

so
n@

w
ea

ve
rv

ill
en

c.
o

rg
 

Th
e 

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

ha
s 

se
le

ct
ed

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

di
vi

du
al

 a
s 

AD
A 

Co
or

di
na

to
r:

74



29
T

O
W

N
 O

F
 W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

  »
W

or
k 

w
ith

 T
ow

n 
de

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

re
m

ed
ia

l e
ff

or
t c

os
ts

 a
nd

 
be

gi
n 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 y

ea
rly

 
bu

dg
et

s 
fo

r f
un

di
ng

 
so

ur
ce

s.

  »
Id

en
tif

y 
fie

ld
 s

ta
ff

 w
ho

 a
re

 
w

el
l e

qu
ip

pe
d 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 

to
 m

on
ito

r s
id

ew
al

ks
 a

nd
 

cu
rb

 ra
m

ps
 d

ur
in

g 
th

ei
r 

da
ily

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

  »
W

or
k 

to
 b

eg
in

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

fu
nd

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n.

  »
W

or
k 

to
 re

as
se

ss
 th

e 
pl

an
 

an
d 

ba
rr

ie
r i

nv
en

to
ry

 o
n 

a 
ye

ar
ly

 b
as

is
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pr
op

er
 b

ud
ge

tin
g 

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
t p

rio
rit

iz
at

io
n.

  »
De

ve
lo

p 
a 

sc
he

du
le

 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

an
d 

el
ec

tro
ni

c 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fo
r p

ot
en

tia
l 

ac
ce

ss
 b

ar
rie

rs
.

  »
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
se

m
i-a

nn
ua

l 
sc

he
du

le
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

La
ke

 
Lo

ui
se

 P
ar

k 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

fo
r e

ro
si

on
 a

nd
 g

ra
ve

l 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e.

p
la

n 
re

q
ui

re
m

en
t 

4:
  

id
en

ti
fy

 a
n 

A
D

A
 C

oo
rd

in
a

to
r

 fu
tu

re
 s

te
p

s
Th

e 
AD

A 
Co

or
di

na
to

r 
sh

al
l 

co
nt

in
ue

 
to

 
pu

rs
ue

 
To

w
n-

w
id

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 b

y 
co

nd
uc

tin
g 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ac

tio
ns

:

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 c
o

nc
er

ni
ng

 t
hi

s 
p

la
n,

 p
le

a
se

 c
o

nt
a

ct
 J

en
ni

fe
r J

a
ck

so
n 

a
t 

co
m

p
lia

nc
e@

w
ea

ve
rv

ill
en

c.
or

g
. 

75



AD
A 

TR
AN

SI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
J

U
N

E
 2

0
2

0

76



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENT: 

June 22, 2020 

Approval of Recycling Contract 

Town Manager 

None 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Town’s recycling contract was due for review and revision in anticipation of putting 
new recycling containers into service in the upcoming year. Curbside Management, Inc., 
operates out of Woodfin and has provided the Town with recycling services for 
approximately 18 years.  

A lot has changed with recycling over the last decade. The new recycling containers will 
work with new technology to allow Curbside to better protect the quality of the recyclable 
materials that it processes by tracking containers that have a high degree of unacceptable 
recyclable materials. This not only helps the environment but also helps to keep the cost of 
recycling down due to better marketability of recyclable materials. 

The Town Manager proposes a 5 year contract with Curbside with services similar to what 
is in place currently. As the Town puts the new recycling containers into service and phases 
out the “blue bags” over the next year, the rate for the transition year will be $3.00 per 
household per month, and is an increase from the current rate of $2.78. The base rate for 
recycling will go to $3.15 per household per month beginning July 1, 2021, as tracking 
software comes online, and this rate is subject to an annual adjustment based on the 
consumer price index (CPI). Only annual adjustments based on the CPI may be added to the 
rate for the remaining years under the contract.  

As a point of comparison, the most recent contract that was approved in 2014 established a 
rate of $2.59, so the increases over the years have been fairly modest.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to authorize the Town Manager to finalize and execute a recycling 
contract with Curbside Management, Inc., consistent with the parameters set out above.  

77



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENTS: 

June 22, 2020 

County Tax Collections Agreement 

Town Manager 

Proposed Resolution 
Proposed Interlocal Agreement with Buncombe County 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Town Manager has taken the opportunity to look at some different options for 
property tax collection. The vast majority of smaller jurisdictions across the state contract 
with their counties for tax collection. While we have had many years of great success 
keeping these collections as a Town staff function, the cost of that in-house collection has 
increased over the years due to the certifications that must be maintained by all tax 
collectors, even part-time ones.  

Buncombe County provides tax collection for almost all of its municipalities and has a 
99.9% collection rate. With the proposed interlocal agreement, the County has agreed to 
provide tax collection services to the Town by issuing a combined tax bill for a fee of 2% of 
all property taxes collected. This rate is consistent with all of the other jurisdictions in the 
County except for the City of Asheville. While Town Council will still be required to take 
some actions regarding property taxes, that action, as well as staff time, will be minimized 
under this arrangement with the County. While the exact amount that the Town will owe 
the County cannot be known since it is percentage based, the Finance Director has 
estimated the cost at $62,000 and believes that this is comparable to the Town’s full cost of 
tax collection services.   

The Town Manager and Finance Director believe that contracting with Buncombe County 
for property tax collection is in the best interest of the Town and, therefore, recommends 
approval of the agreement. The timing of this change is optimal given the recent 
resignation of the tax collector, the upcoming tax settlement at the conclusion of FY 
2019-2020, and the new bills that will be due out in July or August.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve the Resolution Approving the Interlocal Agreement for 
Tax Collection and Appointment of Tax Collector.  

78



  
 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
RESOLUTION APPROVING INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR TAX 

COLLECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF TAX COLLECTOR  
 
WHEREAS, NCGS § 105-349 requires the governing body of each municipality 

to appoint a tax collector to serve for a term to be determined by the appointing body 
and until his or her successor has been appointed and qualified; and 

WHEREAS, Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes 
allows the Town and Buncombe County to jointly exercise any function that they have 
been granted to exercise alone and to enter into contracts or agreements to specify 
the details of these joint undertakings; 

WHEREAS, the Town and Buncombe County wish to enter into the interlocal 
agreement for the collection of the Town’s property taxes that is attached hereto;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Weaverville Town Council 
hereby (1) approves the attached Agreement and authorizes the Town Manager and 
Finance Director to execute it on behalf of the Town, and (2) appoints the Buncombe 
County Tax Collector as the Tax Collector of the Town of Weaverville effective July 1, 
2020 and beginning with FY 2020-2021. 

ADOPTED this the 22nd day of June, 2020. 
 
 
             
       ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 
 
 
      
JAMES ELLER, Interim Town Clerk 
 
 

79



 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
BUNCOMBE COUNTY 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ___ day of June, 2020, by and between 
the COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina, (hereinafter 
sometimes referred to as “County”) and the TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, a municipal corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter sometimes 
referred to as “Town”); 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the County and the Town have power pursuant to General Statutes 153A-
445 and Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes to jointly exercise any 
function which they have been granted the power to exercise alone and to enter into contracts 
or agreements to specify the details of these joint undertakings; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties feel that it would be to their mutual advantage as well as the 
advantage of all citizens of the County and Town for the County to bill and collect both the 
County and Town taxes upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set out. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties hereto and 
for the purposes aforesaid, it is hereby agreed between the County and Town as follows: 
 

1. This agreement shall cover the collection of taxes for a Three (3) year period 
beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2023. 
 

2. Unless sooner terminated as herein provided, the parties hereto may extend this 
Agreement for successive terms of three (3) years each provided such extensions 
are agreed to between the parties in writing. 

 
3. That during the term of this agreement Buncombe County will bill and collect for the 

Town its real estate, business personal, personal property taxes, including the 
Town's fee charged for motor vehicles licensed within the Town, any taxes related 
to motor vehicles, and, subject to the provisions set forth below, any lien for special 
assessments made and confirmed by the Town (collectively "Town taxes"); 
provided, however, the parties hereto understand that the County must comply 
with applicable limitations on use of remedies as same are prescribed in GS §105-
378.  
 

4. That should the Town make any special assessments as authorized by Ch. 160A of 
the General Statutes then the Town shall make the following accommodations for 
County's collection of such special assessments: 

a. Town shall provide County with at least 90 days advance notice of the date 
the Town anticipates that it will confirm any assessment roll; 

80



b. County shall be entitled to charge a one-time setup fee of $7,500 in 
preparation for billing and collecting of the liens on each lot, parcel, or tract 
assessed; 

c. County shall be entitled to charge a recurring annual fee of $18.50 per bill 
on each lot, parcel, or tract assessed for the term of the assessment or until 
each such lien is paid in full whichever occurs first;   

d. Town will be responsible for development of a special assessment file in the 
agreed-upon file format (included as Appendix to this Agreement). Town 
shall be responsible for the accuracy and integrity of the data provided in 
the file; and 

e. Town will provide staff resources for data validation, testing, and other 
activities required during the setup phase. 

 
5. That for its services in billing and collecting Town taxes, beginning with the Fiscal 

Year 2021, the Town will pay the County 2% of all amounts collected on behalf of 
the Town beginning July 1, 2020.   
 

6. That in addition to the foregoing fee, the Town agrees to pay the County the actual 
additional cost the County may incur as a result of future annexation by the Town; 
said additional cost, if any, shall be separately listed and itemized.    
 

7. That in addition to the foregoing fee, the Town agrees to pay its pro rata share of 
any professional expenses which the County may incur in collection of Town and 
County taxes (e.g., attorney fees, appraisal expenses, auditing expenses, etc.). The 
expenses herein contemplated are those which would be incurred to collect taxes 
requiring the use of professional help not available on the County Tax Collector’s 
staff. Buncombe County will exercise restraint in expenditures to collect tax bills for 
which the amount of tax to be collected is small and the likelihood of collecting is 
poor. The Town is aware that the County may decide to employ one or more outside 
agencies (such as collection agencies) to locate missing taxpayers for either a fixed 
fee or for a percentage of the taxes collected.  The Town consents to such 
arrangement. 

 
8. That the portion of tax collections to  which the Town is entitled shall be paid to the 

Town by electronic transfer into the Town's North Carolina Capital Management 
Trust Account (herein "NCCMT") by monthly electronic transfer on Mondays for 
the preceding week's receipts. Further, should any payment not be received within 
the time frame specified in this paragraph, the Town shall be entitled to receive 
interest lost for late payments into the Town's NCCMT from the County calculated 
as to the date and rate they would have received from the Town's NCCMT.  It is 
agreed that upon request in writing by the County Finance Director, the Town 
Finance Director shall have the ability to waive the lost interest from late payments 
if the County has a reasonable explanation for the late payment. The waiver of the 
Town Finance Director shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
9. That the Town agrees to adopt any County discount rate that may be afforded to 

citizens who pay their taxes early.  It is understood the Town agrees to adopt a 
resolution to forgo collection of ad valorem tax bills that do not exceed five dollars 

81



($5.00) pursuant to G.S. 105-321(f).  It is also understood the Town agrees to adopt 
a resolution regarding small overpayments and underpayments of one dollar or less 
($1.00) pursuant to G.S. 105-357(c).    

 
10. That the Buncombe County Tax Collector shall maintain records showing the 

amount of taxes assessed and collected for the County separate and apart from the 
amount of taxes assessed and collected for the Town and other taxing units. 

 
11. That insofar as practical and permitted by law, all steps in the collection of County 

and Town taxes shall be combined to the end that the consolidation of the two tax 
collecting departments shall be given the full scope authorized by law, and in this 
connection, the Town delegates to the County its authority to collect, compromise 
and settle disputed tax claims. 

 
12. That only one bill shall be mailed to the taxpayer owing taxes to both of the taxing 

units, except for any motor vehicle tax, which is separately billed. In the event of a 
partial payment on such consolidated tax bill, the amount of such payment shall be 
proportionately credited against taxes due each unit. 

 
13. The tax records relating to taxes due to the Town shall be available to the Town, its 

agents and employees at all reasonable times. 
 
14. That the Buncombe County Tax Collector shall have full power and authority to 

collect taxes due the Town by any legal means and to perform any and all other 
duties imposed by law upon the Town Tax Collector with respect to Town taxes. 

 
15. That with respect to delinquent tax items due both the County and Town, the 

Buncombe County Tax Collector may cause actions to be brought for foreclosure of 
said tax liens in the name of the County, or both the Town and the County. If taxes 
are delinquent to one of the taxing units and not to the other, tax collection 
measures may be brought in the name of the unit to which the taxes are due. 

 
16. That penalties and interest collected from a taxpayer and discounts allowed to a 

taxpayer shall be properly apportioned between the County and the Town where 
the same taxpayer makes payments on property taxable by both units. 

 
17. That the County shall make available to the Town analysis of each year’s levy when 

it is compiled. The analysis may include billing scrolls by name, by parcel 
identification number and by tax value, Top 10 (ten) delinquent taxpayers list, TR-2 
value report, Motor Vehicle reports, etc. 

 
18. That either party may terminate this Agreement effective at the end of the then 

current fiscal year by giving the other party written notice of termination of 
agreement on or before January 31 of any tax year covered by this Agreement.   

 
19. Amendments to this agreement shall be effective only when reduced to writing and 

adopted in the same manner as this Agreement is required to be adopted. 
 

82



20. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, including separate 
counterparts.  Each shall be an original, but all of them together constitute the same 
instrument. 
 

 
 
 

 

 

[Signature Pages Follows] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

83



SIGNATURE PAGE 1 OF 2 TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
BUNCOMBE COUNTY AND TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
in their corporate names by their duly authorized officers, all by authority of their governing 
bodies of each of their taxing units duly adopted, this the day and year first above written. 
 
 
      BUNCOMBE COUNTY 
 
 
 
      By: _____________________________ 
       Brownie Newman, Chairman 
       Board of County Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Lamar Joyner, Clerk to the Board  
 
       
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 
 
 
 I, _________________________, Notary Public for said County and State, has personal 
knowledge of the identity of Lamar Joyner, and hereby certifies that said Lamar Joyner, Clerk to 
the Board, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he is Clerk to the 
Board of Commissioners of County of Buncombe and that Brownie Newman is the Chairman of 
the Board of Commissioners of Buncombe County, and that by authority duly given and as the 
act of the County of Buncombe, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by said 
Chairman, sealed with its official seal, and voluntarily attested to by himself as its Clerk as the 
act and deed of the County of Buncombe, all by authority duly given by its governing body. 
 
 Witness my hand and notarial seal, this the ___ day of _____________, 2020. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
        
       Notary Public 
 
My commission expires 
    
 

84



 
SIGNATURE PAGE 1 OF 2 TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
BUNCOMBE COUNTY AND TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

 
 
      TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 
 
 
      BY:  ____________________________ 
       Selena Coffey, Town Manager 
       Town of Weaverville 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
NAME 
Town Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 
 
 I, ________________________, a Notary Public in and for the aforesaid County and 
State, do hereby certify that James Eller, Town Clerk, personally came before me this day and 
duly acknowledged that she is the duly appointed Town Clerk of the Town of Weaverville, and 
that Selena Coffey is the Town Manager of the Town of Weaverville, and that by authority duly 
given and as the act of the Town of Weaverville, the foregoing instrument was signed in its 
name by said Mayor, sealed with its official seal, and voluntarily attested to by herself as its 
Clerk as the act and deed of the Town of Weaverville, all by authority duly given by its governing 
body 
 
 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal, this the ____ day of ____________, 2020. 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
        Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
This instrument has been preaudited 
in the manner required by The Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act 
 
 
       
Name: Tonya Dozier 
Finance Officer, Town of Weaverville 

85



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Monday, June 22, 2020 

Adoption of Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget Ordinance & Fee Schedule 

Selena Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  1. Budget Ordinance
2. Fee Schedule

Description: 

Town Council has conducted its budget workshops and given direction to staff for revisions 
to the proposed budget for fiscal year 2020-2021. In accordance with North Carolina General 
Statutes, a public hearing on the budget was held on Tuesday, June 9. The attached Budget 
Ordinance and Fee Schedule reflects the revisions made by Town Council during budget 
deliberations. 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of the attached Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 
Ordinance and Fee Schedule to be effective July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 

86



FY 2020-2021 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S §159-8 requires that the Town of Weaverville appoint a Budget Officer to 
serve at the will of the governing body and Town Council has and hereby appoints the Town Manager to 
serve in such capacity; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-10, departmental budget requests were submitted to 
the Budget Officer by March 6, 2020, and in accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-11, the Budget Officer 
submitted the budget message to the Mayor and Town Council on May 12, 2020, which included the tax 
rate calculated as thirty-eight cents ($0.38) per $100 in valuation per the Buncombe County Tax 
Department’s assessments; and  

 WHEREAS, in accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-12(a), the Budget Officer filed the proposed budget 
with the Town Clerk on May 12, 2020 and posted the same on the Town's website, and the Town Clerk 
caused a statement indicating that the proposed budget had been submitted to the governing body and 
was available for public inspection and that a public hearing on the budget was scheduled for June 9, 
2020; and 

 WHEREAS, Town Council, in accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-12(b) and after proper notice under 
N.C.G.S. §159-12(a), held a public hearing on the proposed budget on June 9, 2020, providing the public 
with an opportunity to attend and provide comment; and 

 WHEREAS, Town Council has carefully considered the anticipated revenues and expenditures 
necessary to provide for the provision of municipal services within the Town of Weaverville during the 
2020-2021 fiscal year and wishes to adopt this Budget Ordinance which reflects a balanced budget in 
accordance with N.C.G.S. §159-8 with the sum of estimated net revenues and appropriated fund balances 
equal to appropriations;  

 BE IT, THEREFORE, ORDAINED by the Town Council for the Town of Weaverville, North 
Carolina:  

Section 1.   General Fund Revenues 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the General Fund for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 

GENERAL FUND  
  
REVENUES  
  
Prior Year Taxes $4,000 
Ad Valorem Taxes $3,299,048 
DMV Tax Revenue $201,262 
Tax Penalties & Interest $4,000 
Utility Tax Revenue $467,500 
Beer & Wine Excise Tax $17,000 

87



FY 2020-2021 Budget Ordinance 
Effective July 1, 2020 

Proposed for Adoption on June 22, 2020 
 
 

2 
 

 

 

Section 2.   General Fund Appropriations 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the General Fund for the operation of the Town 
government and its activities for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021, in 
accordance with the departmental units heretofore established for the Town: 

APPROPRIATIONS  
  
Governance  $265,024 
Administration $629,587                                                                                             
Planning Department  $118,564 
Police Department $1,984,143 
Fire Department $2,506,566 
Public Works:  
 Streets Division $443,256 
 Powell Bill Division $100,000 
 Sanitation Division $702,518 
 Recreation Division $296,791 
Contingency $20,000 
Debt Service $174,346 
  
TOTAL GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS $7,240,794 

 

 

 

Powell Bill Funds $100,000 
Local Government Sales Tax Revenue $1,116,800 
Fire Protection Contract Revenue $1,548,864 
ABC – Distribution to Town $150,000 
Cell Tower Revenue $16,000 
Miscellaneous Revenue $35,000 
Interest Income $12,100 
Powell Bill Interest Income $500 
Planning & Zoning Fees $20,000 
Fire Inspection Fees $500 
Sale of Surplus Property $10,000 
Appropriated Fund Balance $238,220 
  
TOTAL ESTIMATED GENERAL FUND REVENUES $7,240,794 

88



FY 2020-2021 Budget Ordinance 
Effective July 1, 2020 

Proposed for Adoption on June 22, 2020 
 
 

3 
 

Section 3.   Water Fund Revenues 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Water Fund for the fiscal year beginning 
July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 

WATER FUND  
  
REVENUES  
  
Water Revenue $2,070,000 
Miscellaneous Revenue $15,000 
Water Tap Revenue $26,250 
System Development Fees $147,000 
Fees for MSD Collections $60,000 
Interest Earned $5,500 
  
TOTAL ESTIMATED WATER FUND REVENUES  $2,323,750 

 

Section 4.   Water Fund Appropriations   

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Water Fund for the operation of the Town’s water 
system for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021, in accordance with the 
departmental divisions heretofore established for the Town: 

WATER FUND  
  
APPROPRIATIONS:  
  
Water Administration $273,277 
Water Production $817,297 
Water Maintenance $729,566 
Contingency $15,000 
Reserve for Bond Payments $203,616 
Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund $284,994 
  
TOTAL WATER FUND APPROPRIATIONS $2,323,750 

 

Section 5.   Capital Reserve Funds 
 

Capital Reserve Fund – Water Fund 
A Capital Reserve Fund for the Water Fund was established by resolution and adopted on June 18, 2018, 

89



FY 2020-2021 Budget Ordinance 
Effective July 1, 2020 

Proposed for Adoption on June 22, 2020 
 
 

4 
 

effective July 1, 2018.  The fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021 includes the 
following: 
 

Transfer from the Water Fund to Capital Reserve Fund for future expansion of the Water 
Treatment Plant: $284,994 
 

Section 6.   Capital Project Funds  

A Capital Project Fund for the Waterline Extension Project was established by ordinance and adopted on 
February 25, 2019.    The total cost of the project is estimated at $2,970,600 and has a USDA loan 
approved.  Of this amount, $493,218 in expenditures has been paid as of June 30, 2020. For the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021, it is estimated that an additional $1,975,000 will be 
spent on the project. 

A Capital Project Fund for the new Community Center was established by ordinance and adopted on 
January 27, 2020.  The total cost of the project is estimated at $3,344,040 and will be funded by General 
Fund Balance.  Of this amount, $425,454 in expenditures has been paid as of June 30, 2020. For the fiscal 
year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021, it is estimated that an additional $2,781,600 will be 
spent on the project. 

Section 7.   Ad Valorem Taxes  

An ad valorem tax rate of thirty-eight cents ($0.38) per one hundred dollars ($100.00) valuation of 
taxable property, as listed for taxes as of January 1, 2020 is hereby levied and established as the official 
tax rate for the Town of Weaverville for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. This 
tax rate is based upon a total projected valuation of $876,939,961 and an estimated collection rate of 
99.0%.  

Section 8.   Fee and Rate Schedule   

There is hereby adopted an official Fee Schedule (including Water Rates) listing monies receivable by the 
Town of Weaverville as referenced in Sections 1 and 3 of this Budget Ordinance. The Fee Schedule is 
incorporated as an addendum to this Budget Ordinance.  

  

90



FY 2020-2021 Budget Ordinance 
Effective July 1, 2020 

Proposed for Adoption on June 22, 2020 
 
 

5 
 

Section 9.   Authorizations & Conditions 

The Town Manager, serving also as Budget Officer for the Town of Weaverville, is hereby authorized to 
transfer appropriations as contained herein under the following conditions: 

A. This Budget Ordinance defines departments and divisions as follows: 

General Fund Departments:  Divisions: 
   
Governance & Legal   
Administration   
Planning Department   
Police Department   
Fire Department   
Public Works:  • Streets Division 

• Powell Bill Division 
• Sanitation Division 
• Recreation Maintenance Division 

   
Water Fund Departments:  Divisions: 
   
Water  • Water Administration 

• Water Production 
• Water Maintenance 

 
B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds 

based upon the line item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 

C. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures 
and revenues, within a department or division without limitation and without a report being 
required.  
 

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 
monthly, between departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same 
fund. The Budget Officer must make an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular 
meeting of Town Council. 
 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as 
approved by Town Council, as a budget amendment.  

  

91



FY 2020-2021 Budget Ordinance 
Effective July 1, 2020 

Proposed for Adoption on June 22, 2020 

6 

Section 10.   Contingency Concerning Fire Tax Rate 

The North Buncombe Fire Tax Rate used in this Budget Ordinance is twelve cents ($0.12) per $100.00 in 
valuation. Should Buncombe County set the fire tax rate applicable within the Town's jurisdiction lower 
than $0.12 per $100.00 in valuation, then the Town's Budget for FY 2020-2021 shall be and is hereby 
automatically amended to appropriate the resulting difference in fire tax revenue from the fund balance 
within the Town's General Fund. 

Section 11.   Utilization of Budget Ordinance 

The Budget Ordinance shall be the basis for the financial plan of the Town of Weaverville during the fiscal 
year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. The Budget Officer shall administer the budget. The 
accounting system shall establish records, which are in consonance with this budget and this ordinance 
and the appropriate statutes of the State of North Carolina.  

Section 12.   Distribution & Documentation 

Copies of this Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Clerk, the Budget Officer and the Finance 
Officer to be kept on file by them for direction in the collection of revenues and disbursement of Town 
funds. 

DULY ADOPTED this the 22nd day of June 2020. 

Allan P. Root, Mayor 
Town of Weaverville 

ATTEST: 

James Eller, Interim Town Clerk 

92



 

 

FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 

Town of Weaverville 

Adopted June 22, 2020 

Effective July 1, 2020 

 

Page References 

 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE FEES .................................................................................................................. 3 

Returned check fee for non-tax payments ........................................................................................................ 3 

Returned check fee for tax payments ................................................................................................................ 3 

Processing Fees for Electronic Payments ........................................................................................................... 3 

Special Event Permit Fees .................................................................................................................................. 3 

Facility Use Fees ................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Lake Louise Fishing License ................................................................................................................................ 3 

Solid Waste/Trash Violation ............................................................................................................................... 3 

Recycling Fee ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Public Records Request Copying Charge(s) ........................................................................................................ 4 

Annexation Petition Fee ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

Fire Hydrant Connection Permit ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Hourly Charges for Equipment/Personnel ......................................................................................................... 4 

Beer & Wine Privilege Licenses .......................................................................................................................... 4 

FIRE DEPARTMENT ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

POLICE DEPARTMENT .................................................................................................................................... 5 

Violations of General Provisions ........................................................................................................................ 5 

Dangerous Dog Violations .................................................................................................................................. 5 

Parks and Recreation Violations (daily) …………………………………………………………………………………... .................... 5 

Parking Violations ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

Parked within Handicapped Zone ...................................................................................................................... 5 

PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT ............................................................................................................ 5 

Residential Zoning Permits: ................................................................................................................................ 5 

Commercial / Industrial Zoning Permits: ........................................................................................................... 6 

93



FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 
Adopted June 22, 2020 and effective July 1, 2020 

 

 

2 
 

Sign Permits: ....................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Special Use Permit or Related Amendment Fee ................................................................................................ 6 

Rezoning/Zoning Map Amendment Fees: .......................................................................................................... 6 

Text Amendment Fees ....................................................................................................................................... 6 

Conditional Zoning District Application Fees: .................................................................................................... 6 

Subdivision Fees: ................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Public Street Commitment Application Fee $200.00 ...................................................................................... 6 

Miscellaneous Planning, Zoning & Code Enforcement Fees: ............................................................................. 6 

Violations of General Provisions ........................................................................................................................ 7 

WATER DEPARTMENT ................................................................................................................................... 7 

Administrative Water Fees ................................................................................................................................. 7 

Water System Account Deposits ........................................................................................................................ 7 

Water Leak Protection ....................................................................................................................................... 7 

Water Rates ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 

Minimum Monthly Water Charges .................................................................................................................... 8 

Bulk Water Rates ................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Tap Charges Including Re-Taps (Inside & Outside Customers) .......................................................................... 8 

Water System Development Fees (Inside & Outside Customers)...................................................................... 9 

Water System Availability/Commitment Fees (Inside & Outside Customers) ................................................... 9 

Charges for Fire Line Connection ....................................................................................................................... 9 

 

  

94



FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 
Adopted June 22, 2020 and effective July 1, 2020 

 

 

3 
 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 

 

Returned check fee for non-tax payments ................................................................................................................... $25.00 

Returned check fee for tax payments ................................................................................................................................. 10% 

Processing Fees for Electronic Payments 
Direct vendor fees charged through ACI Worldwide and www.officialpayments.com - These fees shall automatically be 

updated should changes be made to the fees charged by vendor and the Town Manager is authorized to amend the 

adopted Fee Schedule to reflect such changes.  

Utility Payments ................................................................................................................................................. $2.95 flat fee  

Tax Payments........................................................................................................................ 2.5% with a $3.95 minimum 

Planning/Zoning Payments and Miscellaneous Payments ................................ 2.5% with a $1.95 minimum 

Special Event Permit Fees (Reference Special Events Permit) 

Events with No Alcohol ............................................................................................................................................. $200.00 

Events with Alcohol .................................................................................................................................................... $400.00 

 

Facility Use Fees (Reference Facility Use Policy & Application) 

Facility 
Resident 
per Hour 

Non-Resident 
per Hour 

Deposit 

Town Hall Community Room $100.00 $300.00 $500.00 

Town Hall Community Room Kitchen $20.00 $20.00  

Lake Louise Fishing License   [FEES TEMPORARILY SUSPENDED FOR FY 2020-2021]                                

Daily (Residency Not Applicable) ..................................................................................................................................... $0.00 

Monthly, Town Residents .................................................................................................................................................... $0.00 

Monthly, Non-Residents ....................................................................................................................................................... $0.00 

Annually, Town Residents ................................................................................................................................................... $0.00 

Annually, Non-Residents...................................................................................................................................................... $0.00 

 

Solid Waste/Trash Violation................................................................................................................................................ $50.00 

Recycling Fee  (Monthly fee included on utility bill) .....................................................................................................  $3.00 
Direct vendor fees charged by Curbside Management - These fees shall automatically be updated should changes be made 

to the fees charged by vendor and the Town Manager is authorized to amend the adopted Fee Schedule to reflect such 

changes. Recycling Fee reflects vendor charge as of July 1, 2020. 

 

 

  

95

http://www.officialpayments.com/


FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 
Adopted June 22, 2020 and effective July 1, 2020 

 

 

4 
 

Public Records Request Copying Charge(s) 

8 ½” x 11" black & white single-sided hardcopy (per page)................................................................................. $0.02 

8 ½” x 11" color single-sided hardcopy (per page) .................................................................................................. $0.09 

8 ½” x 11" black & white double-sided hardcopy (per page).................................................. .............................  $0.03 

8 ½” x 11" color double-sided hardcopy (per page) ................................................................................................ $0.18 

Electronic Copies ........................................................................................................................................................... No Charge 

Applicable postage will also be charged for mailing hard copy documents.    
 

Annexation Petition Fee ...................................................................................................................................................... $200.00 

Fire Hydrant Connection Permit ....................................................................................................................................... $30.00 

Hourly Charges for Equipment/Personnel 

Equipment 

Police Car ................................................................................................................................................................................ $15.00 

Pumper Truck ....................................................................................................................................................................... $80.00 

Ladder Truck ..................................................................................................................................................................... $150.00 

Ton Truck (P/U Brush Truck) ....................................................................................................................................... $20.00 

Command Vehicles ............................................................................................................................................................. $10.00 

Tanker ...................................................................................................................................................................................... $30.00 

 
Personnel 

Firefighters, Police Officers, Public Works Employees........................................................................................ $25.00 

Captain ..................................................................................................................................................................................... $30.00 

Chief Officers ......................................................................................................................................................................... $35.00 

Beer & Wine Privilege Licenses 

Taxes will be assessed for all malt beverage and wine licenses in accordance with and as required by 
N.C.G.S. 105-113.77et seq., as the same may from time to time be amended. 

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

Plans Permit ................................................................................................................................................................................. $100.00 

Fuel Dispensing Permit .............................................................................................................................................................. $50.00 

Other charges may be assessed by the Fire Department or Fire Marshal’s Office due to fines associated with fire code and 
fire lane violations. 

 

  

96



FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 
Adopted June 22, 2020 and effective July 1, 2020 

 

 

5 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
Violations of General Provisions .................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Unless otherwise specifically provided, $100.00 charge for each separate and distinct violation;  
additional civil penalties may be assessed pursuant to Town Code or other applicable law 

  
Dangerous Dog Violations 
 

Class I:  $250.00 first day, and $250.00 each subsequent day of continuous violation. 

Class II: $500.00 first day, and $500.00 each subsequent day of continuous violation. 

Class III: $1,000.00 first day, and $1,000.00 each subsequent day of continuous violation. 
 
Parks and Recreation Violations (daily) …………………………………………………………………………………... $25.00 
Includes fishing without a license, dogs off-leash, and vehicles on grass/trail 

 
Parking Violations 

Parked within Handicapped Zone....................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Parked within Fire Lane  ......................................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Obstructing Traffic  ................................................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Parked within 25 Feet of Intersection ................................................................................................................................. $50.00 
Parked in or within 10 Feet of Crosswalk........................................................................................................................... $50.00 
Parked within 25 Feet of Traffic Sign/Signal .................................................................................................................... $50.00 
Blocking Private Driveway ........................................................................................................................................................ $50.00 
Double Parked ................................................................................................................................................................................ $50.00 
Truck Traffic in Restricted Area ............................................................................................................................................. $50.00 
Exceeding Time Limit .................................................................................................................................................................. $30.00 
Parked Across Lines ..................................................................................................................................................................... $30.00 
Exceeding 12 Inches from Curb or Street Edge ................................................................................................................ $30.00 
All Other Parking Violations  .................................................................................................................................................... $30.00 

  

PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT 

Residential Zoning Permits: 

Single Family Dwelling ............................................ $150.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 1,200 with a max of $300.00 

Multi Family Dwelling ...............................................$300.00 plus $50.00 per dwelling unit with a max of $1,000.00 

Secondary Dwelling .................................................................................................................................................................. $150.00 

Addition to Dwelling .................................................................................................. $75.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 1,200 

Accessory Structure ....................................................................................................... $50.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 100 

Deck/Porch ...................................................................................................................................................................................... $50.00 

Home Occupation .......................................................................................................................................................................... $50.00 

Internal Up-fit ................................................................................................................................................................................. $50.00 

Temporary Structure/Use ......................................................................................................................................................... $50.00 

97



FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 
Adopted June 22, 2020 and effective July 1, 2020 

 

 

6 
 

Commercial / Industrial Zoning Permits: 

Commercial/Industrial Structure ................... $350.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 2,000 with a max of $1,000.00 

Commercial/Industrial Addition ......................... $100.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 2,000 with a max of $500.00 

Accessory Structure ........................................................ $50.00 plus $0.05 per sq. ft. over 500 with a max of $100.00 

Internal Up-Fit/Renovation ................................................................................................................................................... $100.00 

Telecommunication Tower ....................................................................... $4,000.00 per location or max allowed by law 

Telecommunication Tower (Co-location, Microcell, Concealed)   $500.00 per location or max allowed by law 

Temporary Structure/Use (Annually) .............................................................................................................................. $100.00 

Mobile Food Vendors: 
Daily ............................................................................................................................................................................................ $25.00 

Annually  ................................................................................................................................................................................ $100.00 

Sign Permits: 

Sign Permit Fee ......... $50.00 plus fee based upon total surface area of sign (see below) with a max of $500.00 

Up to 32 sq. ft. ................................................................................................................................................................................. $25.00 

33 - 64 sq. ft. .................................................................................................................................................................................... $50.00 

65 - 96 sq. ft. ................................................................................................................................................................................. $100.00 

97 sq. ft. plus ...................................................................................................................................... $150.00 plus $2.50 per sq. ft. 

 

Special Use Permit or Related Amendment Fee ..................................................................................................... $500.00 

Rezoning/Zoning Map Amendment Fees: 

Less Than 1 Acre ........................................................................................................................................................................ $250.00 

1 - 3 Acres ...................................................................................................................................................................................... $500.00 

4 - 9 Acres ...................................................................................................................................................................................... $750.00 

10 + Acres .................................................................................................................................................................................. $1,000.00 

 

Text Amendment Fees .......................................................................................................................................................... $500.00 

Conditional Zoning District Application Fees: 

Less Than 1 Acre ........................................................................................................................................................................ $250.00 

1 - 3 Acres ...................................................................................................................................................................................... $500.00 

4 - 9 Acres ...................................................................................................................................................................................... $750.00 

10 + Acres .................................................................................................................................................................................. $1,000.00 

Subdivision Fees: 

Minor Subdivision..................................................................................................................................... $100.00 plus $25 per lot 

Major Subdivision ..................................................................................................................................... $300.00 plus $25 per lot 

Public Street Commitment Application Fee ............................................................................................................. $200.00 

Miscellaneous Planning, Zoning & Code Enforcement Fees: 

Zoning Verification Letter ......................................................................................................................................................... $25.00 

Gaming Terminal Fees (per machine) ........................................................................................................................... $1,000.00 

Variance ......................................................................................................................................................................................... $250.00  

98



FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 
Adopted June 22, 2020 and effective July 1, 2020 

 

 

7 
 

Appeal of an Administrative Decision .........................................................................................................................  No Charge 

Nuisance Violation (which requires Town abatement) ............................................................................................. $100.00 

Violations of General Provisions ......................................................................................................................................... $100.00 
Unless otherwise specifically provided, $100.00 charge for each separate and distinct violation;  
additional civil penalties may be assessed pursuant to Town Code or other applicable law 

 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

Administrative Water Fees 

Account Establishment Service Charge ............................................................................................................................... $25.00 

Seasonal Reconnect Fee ............................................................................................................................................................. $20.00 

Reconnect Fee ................................................................................................................................................................................ $60.00 

Flow Test Fee .................................................................................................................................................................................. $40.00 

Meter Testing at Customer Request (Charged only if meter is operational) ....................................................... $40.00 

Water System Account Deposits 

 
Size of Connection Inside Town Limits Amount Outside Town Limits Amount 

⅝” and  ¾” $80.00 $160.00 

1” $100.00 $200.00 

1½” $180.00 $360.00 

2” $300.00 $600.00 

3” $600.00 $1,200.00 

4” $1,000.00 $2,000.00 

 

Water Leak Protection 

The following respective monthly fee shall be assessed on all water customers with water lines that are 2-

inches or less in diameter, subject to opt-out provisions of the water leak protection policy.  

Type of Meter Monthly Fee 

Residential – Single Meter $1.25 

Commercial – Single Meter $3.45 

Commercial – Master Meter $6.90 

 

Water Rates 

Water rates for water used INSIDE the Corporate limits of the Town: 
The first 3,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly .......................................................... $8.87 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 22,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ...................................................... $9.78 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 175,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................. $10.62 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 300,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................. $11.48 per 1,000 gallons 

All over 500,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................... $12.32 per 1,000 gallons 

99



FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 
Adopted June 22, 2020 and effective July 1, 2020 

 

 

8 
 

Water rates for water used OUTSIDE the Corporate limits of the Town: 
The first 3,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ......................................................  $17.74 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 22,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ..................................................  $19.56 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 175,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................  $21.24 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 300,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................  $22.96 per 1,000 gallons 

All over 500,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ..................................................  $24.64 per 1,000 gallons 

 

Minimum Monthly Water Charges 

The minimum monthly charge for water service shall be according to the size of the meter through which 

water is delivered to each customer in accordance with the following schedule: 

 
Meter Size Minimum  

Monthly Usage 
Inside Town Outside Town 

⅝” 2,000 gallons $17.74 $35.48 

¾” 4,000 gallons $36.39 $72.78 

1” 6,000 gallons $55.95 $111.90 

1½” 11,200 gallons $106.81 $213.62 

2” 18,200 gallons $175.27 $350.54 

3” 36,200 gallons $363.23 $726.47 

4” 58,500 gallons $600.06 $1,200.12 

6” 112,000 gallons $1,168.23 $2,336.46 

8” 180,000 gallons $1,890.39 $3,780.78 

10” 258,000 gallons $2,718.75 $5,437.50 

 

 

Bulk Water Rates .................................................................... $0.05 per gallon subject to a minimum charge of $25.00 

 

Tap Charges Including Re-Taps (Inside & Outside Customers) 

Meter Size Tap Fee 

⅝” and ¾” $1,050.00 

1” $1,575.00 

1½” $3,400.00 

2” $4,200.00 

 

  

100



FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 
Adopted June 22, 2020 and effective July 1, 2020 

 

 

9 
 

Water System Development Fees (Inside & Outside Customers) 

Size of Connection Rated Maximum Capacity System Development Fees 

⅝” and ¾” 20 gallons $2,232.00 

1” 50 gallons $5,580.00 

1½” 100 gallons $11,160.00 

2” 160 gallons $17,856.00 

3” 300 gallons $35,712.00 

4” 500 gallons $55,800.00 

6” 1,000 gallons $111,600.00 

 

 

Water System Availability/Commitment Fees (Inside & Outside Customers) 

Non-Refundable Application Fee (for 1” or larger meters and multi-lot/multi-unit development)..….$100.00 

For all multi-lot or multi-unit developments, the availability/commitment fee shall apply to each meter to 

be set based upon connection size. 

Approved 

Size of Connection 

 

Inside Town Limits 

 

Outside Town Limits 

⅝” and ¾”  $35.00 $70.00 

1” $50.00 $100.00 

1½” $100.00 $200.00 

2” $160.00 $320.00 

3” $300.00 $600.00 

4” $500.00 $1,000.00 

6” $1,000.00 $2,000.00 

 

Charges for Fire Line Connection 

Monthly Charge for Fire Connection 
All fire line connections on the water system for the Town of Weaverville shall be subject to a monthly charge 

based upon the square inch size of the line at the following rates: 

INSIDE Corporate limits of the Town:  $2.00 per square inch/month 

OUTSIDE Corporate limits of the Town: $4.00 per square inch/month 

Fire line charges shall be levied by the Water Department according to the following schedule: 

  

101



FY 2020-2021 Fee Schedule 
Adopted June 22, 2020 and effective July 1, 2020 

 

 

10 
 

 

Diameter of Fire Line Square Inch Size Inside Town Outside Town 

2” and smaller 3.14 $6.28 $12.56 

3” 7.07 $14.14 $28.28 

4” 12.56 $25.12 $50.24 

6” 28.26 $56.52 $113.04 

8” 50.24 $100.48 $200.96 

10” 78.50 $157.00 $314.00 

 

Consumption of Water from Fire Line 

If during any month the detector-check valve meter for the fire line shows consumption of more than 200 

gallons of water on the fire line and the consumption is not related to testing of fire lines or firefighting 

activity, the customer (owner) shall be billed, in addition to the monthly fire connection charge, according 

to the following schedule:  

Water rate for water used INSIDE the Corporate limits of the Town: 
0-200 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly........................................................................................... $0.00 per gallon 

The next 2,800 Gallons (up to 3,000 total) or fraction thereof used monthly................ $35.48 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 22,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................... $39.10 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 175,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................. $42.47 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 300,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................. $45.93 per 1,000 gallons 

All over 500,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................... $49.30 per 1,000 gallons 

Water rate for water used OUTSIDE the Corporate limits of the Town: 
0-200 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly........................................................................................... $0.00 per gallon 

The next 2,800 Gallons (up to 3,000 total) or fraction thereof used monthly...............  $70.96 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 22,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ..................................................  $78.20 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 175,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................  $84.94 per 1,000 gallons 

The next 300,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................  $91.86 per 1,000 gallons 

All over 500,000 Gallons or fraction thereof used monthly ................................................... $98.60 per 1,000 gallons 

 

102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113


	Agenda
	May 12, 2020 Town Council Budget Workshop - draft
	May 18, 2020 Town Council Special Called Meeting - draft
	May 18, 2020 -Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes - draft
	May 20, 2020 Town Council Recessed Meeting - draft
	June 9, 2020 -Town Council Budget Workshop - draft
	Monthly Tax Report for 6-16-2020
	Appointment of Interim Tax Collection - June 2020
	Budget Amendment Form - Cops for Kids_ 6-22-20
	Temporary Suspension of Town Fishing Licenses - June 2020
	Town Managers Monthly Report June 2020
	Community Center Change Order Agenda Item
	ADA Transition Plan - June 2020
	Approval of Curbside Recycling Contract - June 2020
	Tax Collection - June 2020
	FY2020-2021 Budget Ordinance and Fee Schedule Agenda Item
	Public Works Quarterly Report June 2020



